
-1- 

 

 
 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 

 
AGENDA 

 
January 17, 2018 

 
 

 All documents for public review are on file in the Planning Department 
located in City Hall at 303 East “B” St., Ontario, CA  91764. 

 
MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 1:30 PM IN ONTARIO CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

LOCATED AT 303 East “B” St. 
  
Scott Ochoa, City Manager 
Hassan Haghani, Development Director 
John P. Andrews, Economic Development Director 
Kevin Shear, Building Official 
Scott Murphy, Assistant Development Director (Planning) 
Louis Abi-Younes, City Engineer 
Chief Brad Kaylor, Police Department 
Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department 
Scott Burton, Utilities General Manager 
Brent Schultz, Housing and Municipal Services Director 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Citizens wishing to address the Development Advisory Board on any matter that is not on the 
agenda may do so at this time.  Please state your name and address clearly for the record and 
limit your remarks to five minutes. 

 
Please note that while the Development Advisory Board values your comments, the members 
cannot respond nor take action until such time as the matter may appear on the forthcoming 
agenda. 
 
 



-2-

AGENDA ITEMS 

For each of the items listed below the public will be provided an opportunity to speak.  After a staff 
report is provided, the chairperson will open the public hearing.  At that time the applicant will be 
allowed five (5) minutes to make a presentation on the case.  Members of the public will then be allowed 
five (5) minutes each to speak.  The Development Advisory Board may ask the speakers questions 
relative to the case and the testimony provided.  The question period will not count against your time 
limit.  After all persons have spoken, the applicant will be allowed three minutes to summarize or rebut 
any public testimony.  The chairperson will then close the public hearing portion of the hearing and 
deliberate the matter. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

A. MINUTES APPROVAL

Development Advisory Board Minutes of December 18, 2017, approved as written.

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR
FILE NO. PDEV17-036: A Development Plan to construct a new automobile sales lot
with a 36,818-square foot sales and service facility (Ontario Infiniti) on 3.9 acres of land
generally located at the southwest corner of Inland Empire Boulevard and QVC Way,
within the Urban Commercial land use district of the Meredith International Centre
Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in
conjunction with File Nos. PGPA13-005 and PSPA14-003, for which the Meredith
International Centre Specific Plan Amendment Environmental Impact Report (SCH No.
2014051020) was certified by the City Council on April 7, 2015. This Application
introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The proposed project is located
within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and
found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport
Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 0110-321-71) submitted by Cordy
Cerami.

1. CEQA Determination

No action necessary – use of previous EIR

2. File No. PDEV17-036 (Development Plan)

Motion to Approve / Deny

C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP TIME
EXTENSION REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PMTT14-020: A one-year Time Extension of
the expiration date for the approval of File No. PMTT14-020, a Tentative Parcel Map (PM
19552) to subdivide a 0.20-acre parcel of land into a single parcel for condominium
purposes, located on the west side of Euclid Avenue, approximately 450 feet north of Elm
Street, at 1420 South Euclid Avenue, within the MDR-18 (Medium Density Residential –
11.1 to 18.0 DU/Acre) and EA (Euclid Avenue) Overlay zoning districts. The project is



 
 

-3- 

categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 (Class 15, Minor Land Divisions) of the CEQA 
Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and 
criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). (APN: 
1050-051-01); submitted by Johnathan Ma. Planning Commission action is required.  

 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – Exempt:  CEQA Guidelines Section § 15315 
       

2. File No. PMTT14-020 (Parcel Map Time Extension) 
 

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial  
 

D.        ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR 
FILE NO. PDEV17-028: A Development Plan to construct 37 multiple-family apartment 
units on 1.13 acres of land generally located on the north side of Sixth Street, approximately 
150 feet east of Interstate 10, at 941 East Sixth Street, within the HDR-45 (High Density 
Residential – 25.1 to 45.0 DU/Acre) zoning district. The project is categorically exempt 
from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as 
amended, and the Guidelines promulgated thereunder, pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 
32, Infill Development) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within 
the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found 
to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 1047-172-03 and 1047-172-19) submitted by Kirk 
Wallace. Planning Commission action is required. 
 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – Exempt:  CEQA Guidelines Section § 15332 
       

2. File No. PDEV17-028 (Development Plan) 
 

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 
E. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR 

FILE NO. PDEV17-045: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-045) to construct 190 
conventional single-family homes on 40.20 acres of land located within the Conventional 
Medium Lot Residential district of Planning Area 3 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, located 
at the southeast corner of Archibald Avenue and Eucalyptus Avenue. The environmental 
impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with an addendum to the 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) that was adopted by the City Council 
on April 21, 2015. This project introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The 
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International 
Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the 
Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 0218-281-
15 and 0218-281-16) submitted by KB Home. Planning Commission action is required. 

 





CITY OF ONTARIO 

Development Advisory Board 

Minutes 

December 18, 2017

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Khoi Do, Chairman, Engineering Department  
Kevin Shear, Building Department  
Charity Hernandez, Economic Development Agency  
Paul Ehrman, Fire Department  
Joe De Sousa, Housing and Municipal Services Agency 
Ahmed Aly, Municipal Utilities Company  
Rudy Zeledon, Planning Department  
Doug Sorel, Police Department  

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 

None 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 

Jeanie Aguilo, Planning Department 
Antonio Alejos, Engineering Department 
Gwen Berendsen, Planning Department 
Maureen Duran, Planning Department 
Bryan Lirley, Engineering Department 
Lorena Mejia, Planning Department 
Chuck Mercier, Planning Department 
Henry Noh, Planning Department 
Miguel Sotomayor, Planning Department 
Alexis Vaughn, Planning Department 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

No one responded from the audience. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Motion to approve the minutes of the November 20, 2017, meeting
of the Development Advisory Board was made by Mr. De Sousa; seconded by Mr. Zeledon;
and approved unanimously by those present (8-0).

Item A - 1 of 4



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes – December 18, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
 
B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP AND DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO’S. PMTT17-006 (PM 19832) AND PDEV17-020: A Tentative 
Parcel Map (File No. PMTT-17-006 (PM 19832) to subdivide a 2.7 acre site for common lot 
condominium purposes in conjunction with a Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-020) to construct 
a two-story retail and medical office building totaling 37,074 square feet located on the northeast corner 
of Euclid Avenue and Riverside Drive, within the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district. The 
project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. 
The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and 
was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1051-614-08) submitted by Creative Design 
Associates. Planning Commission action is required. 

 
Representative Christopher Chung, owner’s agent, was present and agreed to the conditions of 
approval.  Mr. Chung stated the conditions were acceptable but also had a question regarding  
underground utilities.  Mr. Chung asked if there was overhead connecting to O’Reily’s or if they 
would be responsible for connecting to O’Reily’s. Mr. Do informed him that any services would 
be included as part of that work order, and SCE would coordinate with the current company using 
their services from that line.  Mr. Do confirmed with Project Engineer Miguel Sotomayor that the 
in lieu fees were collected; therefore, this project would be eligible to be compensated for the 
undergrounding of the utilities.  
 
Motion recommending approval of File Nos. PMTT17-006 and PDEV17-020 subject to 
conditions to the Planning Commission was made by Mr. De Sousa; and seconded by                               
Mr. Rico; and approved unanimously by those present (8-0). 
 

C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. 
PDEV17-029: A Development Plan to construct a 121,878 square foot addition to an existing 138,638-
square foot industrial building, for a total of 260,516 square feet on 11.76 acres of land located at 905 
North Wineville Avenue, within the Light Industrial land use district of the Crossroads Specific Plan. 
The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration prepared for the Crossroads Specific Plan (File No. 4043 SP), adopted by the 
City Council on July 3, 1990, and subsequent Negative Declarations prepared in conjunction with 
amendments to the Crossroads Specific Plan, including File No. 4998-SPA, adopted by the City 
Council on November 4, 1997, and File No. PSPA02-005, adopted by the City Council on February 
19, 2008. This Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The proposed project 
is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and 
found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 0238-021-66) submitted by Eric Cohen. Planning 
Commission action is required. 

 
Representative Eric Cohen was present and agreed to the conditions of approval.  There were no 
questions or concerns.  
 
Motion recommending approval of File No. PDEV17-029 subject to conditions to the Planning 
Commission was made by Mr. Sorel; seconded by Mr. Zeledon; and approved unanimously by 
those present (8-0). 

Item A - 2 of 4



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes – December 18, 2017 
Page 3 
 
 
D. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. 

PDEV17-032: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-032) to construct an unmanned 
telecommunications facility (monoeucalyptus) totaling 946 square feet (22’ x 43’) of proposed lease 
area on 124.18 acres of developed land located at 13568 S. Hamner Avenue, within the SP (AG) zoning 
district. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA 
Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International 
Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP), with conditions; (APNs: 0218-171-10, 
0218-171-17) submitted by Donna Rosa on behalf of AT&T Mobility. Planning Commission 
action is required. 

 
Representatives Alisha Strasheim and Alexis Hadley of AT & T Mobility were present and agreed 
to the conditions of approval.  There were no questions or concerns.  

 
Motion recommending approval of File No. PDEV17-032 subject to conditions to the Planning 
Commission was made by Mr. De Sousa; seconded by Mr. Rico; and approved unanimously by 
those present (8-0). 
 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. 
PDEV17-048: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-048) to construct a 42,060 square foot aircraft 
hangar, office, shop and ancillary uses on 5.0 acres of land located at the northwest corner of Vineyard 
Avenue and Avion Street, within the ONT (Ontario International Airport) zoning district. The 
environmental impacts of this project were reviewed and found to be categorically exempt from the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 
32, In-fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines by the Ontario International Airport 
Authority. This project introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The proposed project is 
located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found 
to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 113-251-11 and 113-251-10) submitted by JRMA. 

 
Representative Howard Hong, Architect, of JRMA, was present and agreed to the conditions.  
Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner, informed the board that updated ALUCP conditions of approval are 
reflected in the staff report, and the applicant was given a copy.  There were no further questions 
or concerns.  

 
Motion recommending approval of File No. PDEV17-048 subject to conditions was made by Mr. 
Sorel; seconded by Mr. Zeledon; and approved unanimously by those present (8-0). 
 

F. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. 
PDEV17-053: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-053) to construct 82 conventional single-
family homes on 12.67 acres of land located within the Conventional Small Lot Residential district of 
Planning Area 23 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, located at the northeast corner of Celebration Avenue 
and Parkview Street. The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in 
conjunction with an addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) that was 
adopted by the City Council on April 21, 2015. This project introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the 
Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 0218-014-06 and 0218-
014-07) submitted by Tri Pointe Homes. Planning Commission action is required. 

Item A - 3 of 4



Item A - 4 of 4



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
January 17, 2017 

DECISION NO.: DAB18-[insert #] 

FILE NO.: PDEV17-036 

DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan to construct a new automobile sales lot with a 36,818-square 
foot sales and service facility (Infiniti of Ontario) on 3.9 acres of land generally located at the southwest 
corner of Inland Empire Boulevard and QVC Way, within the Urban Commercial land use district of the 
Meredith International Centre Specific Plan (APN: 0110-321-71); submitted by Cordy Cerami. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

CORDY CERAMI, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application requesting 
Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV17-036, as described in the subject of this Decision (herein after 
referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 3.9 acres of land located at the southwest
corner of Inland Empire Boulevard and QVC Way, and is depicted in Exhibit A: Aerial Photograph, 
attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and 
surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 
Land Use 

Site Vacant Mixed Use Specific Plan (SP) Urban Commercial (Meredith 
SP) 

North Industrial Industrial SP Industrial (Meredith SP) 

South Interstate 10 Freeway Interstate 10 Freeway Interstate 10 Freeway Interstate 10 Freeway 

East Vacant Meredith Mixed Use SP Urban Commercial (Meredith 
SP) 

West Vacant Mixed Use SP Urban Commercial (Meredith 
SP) 

(2) Project Description: The Applicant is requesting Development Plan approval to construct
an automobile sales (Infiniti of Ontario) lot on 3.9 acres of land generally located at the southwest corner of 
Inland Empire Boulevard and QVC Way, within the Urban Commercial land use district of the Meredith 
International Centre Specific Plan. The proposed facility will include a two-story, 36,818-square foot 
building, with the 29,346-square foot first floor consisting of showroom, parts and service facilities, and 
offices, and the 7,472-square foot second floor containing offices and conference rooms. 

In addition to the proposed building, approximately 16,850 square feet of outdoor vehicle 
display area is proposed along the Interstate 10 and Inland Empire Boulevard frontages. Furthermore, 80 
customer and employee parking spaces are distributed throughout the project site, and 251 sales inventory 
and service parking spaces are provided at the rear and front of the site. 

The project characteristics are as follows: 

Item B - 1 of 68



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-036 
January 17, 2018 

Page 2 

Project Characteristics: 

Item Proposed Min./Max. Standard Complies 
(Y/N) 

Lot Area: 3.9 acres ** ** 

Building Area: 36,818 SF ** ** 

Floor Area Ratio: 0.23 1.0 (max.) Y 

Building Height: 26 FT 70 FT (max.) Y 

Landscape Coverage (in %) 16% 10% (min.) Y 

Off-Street Parking: 331 spaces 80 spaces (min.) Y 

 Interior Showroom (2.5
spaces for each 1,000
SF)

14 spaces 14 spaces (min.) Y 

 Offices (4 spaces for
each 1,000 SF)

24 spaces 24 spaces (min.) Y 

 Vehicle Service &
Repair (2.5 spaces for
each 1,000 SF)

25 spaces 25 spaces (min.) Y 

 Outdoor Display (one
space for each 1,000
SF)

17 spaces 17 spaces (min.) Y 

 Site and Service
Inventory

251 spaces ** ** 

** Not Applicable 

Architecturally, the proposed building consists of Split face concrete block, EIFS (Exterior 
Insulation Finish System), and corrugated metal panel exterior walls, with Alucobond aluminum composite 
panels at the building fascia, travertine tiles at the building entry, and a clear aluminum storefront with clear 
glazing. The mechanical equipment will be roof-mounted and obscured from public view by the parapet 
walls and, if necessary, equipment screens, which will incorporate design features consistent with the 
building architecture. 

The proposed exterior design reflects the type of high quality commercial design promoted 
by the design guidelines of the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan, which is exemplified through 
the use of: [1] articulation in building footprints, incorporating horizontal changes in the in the exterior 
building walls (combinations of recessed and popped-out wall areas); [2] articulation in the building 
parapet/roof lines, which serves to accentuate the building’s entries and openings; [3] variations in building 
massing; [4] a mix of exterior materials, finishes and fixtures; and [5] incorporation of base and top 
treatments defined by the layering of design elements, including horizontal changes in the exterior wall 
plane in combination with changes in exterior materials and color. 

Part II—RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with 
File No. PGPA13-005, a General Plan Amendment, and File No. PSPA14-003, a Specific Plan Amendment, 

Item B - 2 of 68



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-036 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 3 

for which the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan Amendment Environmental Impact Report (SCH 
No. 2014051020) was certified by the City Council on April 7, 2015, and this Application introduces no new 
significant environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and act on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; 
 

WHEREAS, on January 17, 2018, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-making body for 
the Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous Certified EIR 
and supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous Certified 
EIR and supporting documentation, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with File 
No. PGPA13-005, a General Plan Amendment, and File No. PSPA14-003, a Specific Plan Amendment, for 

Item B - 3 of 68



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-036 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 4 

which the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan Amendment Environmental Impact Report (SCH No. 
2014051020) was certified by the City Council on April 7, 2015. 
 

(2) The previous Certified EIR contains a complete and accurate reporting of the 
environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous Certified EIR was completed in compliance with CEQA and the Guidelines 
promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and 
 

(4) The previous Certified EIR reflects the independent judgment of the Planning Commission; 
and 
 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those 
previously analyzed in the previous Certified EIR, and all mitigation measures previously adopted with the 
Certified EIR, are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds 
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Certified EIR is not required for the Project, as the 
Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require major revisions 
to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase 
in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

 
(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 

Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of 
new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified 
significant effects; and. 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 

not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the Certified EIR was 
certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 
 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the Certified 
EIR; or 

 
(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 

shown in the Certified EIR; or 
 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City 
declined to adopt such measures; or  

 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 

the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but which 
the City declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 

Item B - 4 of 68



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-036 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 5 

establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the decision-making body for the Project, the 
DAB has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 3, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the Meredith Mixed Use land 
use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the Urban Commercial land use district of the Meredith 
International Centre Specific Plan. The development standards and conditions under which the proposed 
Project will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the 
Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with applicable requirements of the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan and 
the City of Ontario Development Code, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed 
(Commercial), as-well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, number of off-
street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Meredith International Centre Specific 
Plan are maintained; [ii] the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the 
project will not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the 
area in which it is located; and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities 
and Policy Plan components of The Ontario Plan, and the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan that are applicable to the 
proposed Project, including building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-
street parking and loading spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site 
landscaping, and fences and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically 
related to the particular land use being proposed ([insert land use]). As a result of this review, the 
Development Advisory Board has determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the 
conditions of approval, will be consistent with the development standards and guidelines described in the 
Meredith International Centre Specific Plan. 
 

Item B - 5 of 68



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-036 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 6 

SECTION 5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby APPROVES the Application subject to each and 
every condition set forth in the Department reports included as Attachment A of this Decision, and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of January 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item B - 6 of 68



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-036 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 7 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 
  

PROJECT SITE 

Item B - 7 of 68



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-036 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 8 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN 
 
  

Item B - 8 of 68



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-036 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit C—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS 
 
 
 

Item B - 9 of 68



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-036 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 
 

Item B - 10 of 68



 
 
Meeting Date: TBD 
 
File No: File No. PDEV17-036 
 
Related Files: N/A 
 
Project Description: A Development Plan to construct a 36,818 square foot commercial building on 
3.999 acres of land generally located south side of Inland Empire Boulevard between Vineyard Avenue and 
QVC Way, within the Urban Commercial land use district of the Meredith International Centre Specific Plan  
(APN(s): 0110-321-71); submitted by Cordy Cerami 
 
Prepared By: Charles Mercier, Senior Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2425 (direct) 
Email: cmercier@ontarioca.gov  

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director. 
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental 
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

Planning Department 

Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item B - 11 of 68

mailto:cmercier@ontarioca.gov


Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV17-036 
Page 2 of 35 

 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation 
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape 
Planning Division. 
 

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been 
approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation 
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be 
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement 
of the changes. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting 
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

(b) All drive approaches shall be provided with an enhanced pavement treatment. The 
enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, to the first intersecting 
drive aisle or parking space. 
 

(c) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street parking 
and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of 
materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than parking. 
 

(d) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be 
provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained 
in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 
 

(e) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the 
physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law 
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 
 

(f) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure 
facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current regulations 
contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11). 
 

2.6 Refuse Storage Areas (Trash Enclosures). 
 

(a) Trash enclosures shall consist of a decorative masonry wall, with appropriate 
decorative view-obstructing gates for container access, and separate pedestrian access, which is designed 
to screen the interior of the enclosure from view from the exterior, and prevent refuse dispersion. The 
enclosure design shall be consistent with the architectural design of adjacent building and shall include a 
decorative overhead roof structure to protect bins containing recyclable materials from adverse 
environmental conditions, which might render the collected materials unusable. 
 

Item B - 12 of 68



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV17-036 
Page 3 of 35 

(b) The proposed trash enclosure design shall be revised to incorporate a decorative 
fascia and thicker, accentuated columns, which match the existing building design. 

(c) The trash enclosure shall be bordered by a minimum 3-foot wide 
(excluding concrete curbs) landscaped planter on exposed exterior sides (excluding the side with bin 
access gates), excepting sides located out of public view.

(d) Signs clearly identifying all recycling and refuse collection areas, and the materials
accepted for recycling, shall be posted adjacent to all points of access to each trash enclosure. 

2.7 Motor Vehicle Loading/Unloading and Storage Areas. 

(a) The loading/unloading of motor vehicles shall only occur on-site. The
loading/unloading of motor vehicles within public rights-of-way shall be prohibited. Furthermore, all 
loading/unloading areas shall have adequate ingress and egress, as approved by the City, and shall be 
designed and maintained so that vehicle maneuvering and loading/unloading activities do not interfere with 
the orderly movement of traffic and pedestrians on any public street. 

(b) Areas designated for off-street parking, motor vehicle loading/unloading, and
vehicular circulation and maneuvering, shall not be used for the outdoor storage and/or display of motor 
vehicles. 

(c) All motor vehicle loading/unloading areas shall be designed and maintained so
that vehicles do not back into the project site, from or onto a public street. 

2.8 Site Lighting. 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), 
designed to confine emitted light to the parking areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until 
sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell switch. 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 

2.9 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. 

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning equipment, and
all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by parapet walls or roof screens 
that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the building architecture. 

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, transformers,
HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view from a public street, or 
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low garden walls. 

2.10 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario 
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 

2.11 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development 
Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations). 

2.12 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not 
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public 
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 

Item B - 13 of 68



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV17-036 
Page 4 of 35 

 
 
 

2.13 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The environmental impacts of this project were reviewed in conjunction with the 
Meredith International Centre Specific Plan Amendment (File No. PSPA14-003), for which an 
Environmental Impact Report (SCH No. 2014051020) was certified by the City Council on April 7, 2015. 
This application introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The City's "Guidelines for the 
Implementation of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single 
environmental assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are adequately 
analyzed. All previously adopted mitigation measures are a condition of project approval, as applicable, 
and are included as Exhibit “A” (Mitigation Monitoring Plan) of these Planning Department Conditions of 
Approval, attached. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

2.14 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.15 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Exemption (NOE) 
filing fee ($50.00) shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 
 
 

Item B - 14 of 68



 

Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

4.0 MITIGATION MONITORING PLAN 
 

 

4.1 INTRODUCTION 

To ensure that the mitigation measures contained in this EIR are properly implemented, 

a monitoring plan has been developed pursuant to State law. This Mitigation Monitoring 

Plan (MMP) identifies measures incorporated in the Project which reduce its potential 

environmental effects; the entities responsible for implementation and monitoring of 

mitigation measures; and the appropriate timing for implementation of mitigation 

measures. As described at CEQA Guidelines §15097, this MMP employs both reporting on, 

and monitoring of, Project mitigation measures.  

 

The objectives of the MMP are to: 

 

 Assign responsibility for, and ensure proper implementation of mitigation 

measures; 

 Assign responsibility for, and provide for monitoring and reporting of compliance 

with mitigation measures; 

 Provide the mechanism to identify areas of noncompliance and need for 

enforcement action before irreversible environmental damage occurs. 

 

Mitigation monitoring and reporting procedures incorporated in the Project are 

presented in the following Section 4.2. Specific mitigation measures incorporated in the 

Project, mitigation timing, and implementation and reporting/monitoring responsibilities 

are presented within this Section at Table 4.2-1. 

 

  

Item B - 15 of 68



 

Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

4.2 MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING 

 

Mitigation Monitoring and Responsibilities 

As the Lead Agency, the City of Ontario is responsible for ensuring full compliance with 

the mitigation measures adopted for the proposed Project. The City will monitor and 

report on all mitigation activities. Mitigation measures will be implemented at different 

stages of development throughout the Project area. In this regard, the responsibilities for 

implementation have been assigned to the Applicant, Contractor, or a combination 

thereof. 

 

If during the course of Project implementation, any of the mitigation measures identified 

herein cannot be successfully implemented, the City shall be immediately informed, and 

the City will then inform any affected responsible agencies. The City, in conjunction with 

any affected responsible agencies, will then determine if modification to the Project is 

required and/or whether alternative mitigation is appropriate. 

Item B - 16 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

Traffic and Circulation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.2.1  

• Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Project 

Applicant shall pay requisite fees toward the construction 

of the improvements summarized at Table 4.2-21 at the 

intersection of: I-10 EB Ramp at 4th Street (Study Area 

Intersection 14); 

• Prior to the issuance of the first Certificate of Occupancy 

for the Project, the Project Applicant shall construct the 

improvements summarized at Table 4.2-21 at the 

intersection of: Haven Avenue at Inland Empire 

Boulevard (Study Area Intersection 30. 

 

Prior to issuance of 

building permits and first 

Certificate of Occupancy. 

Applicant City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City shall verify payment of 

fees and completion of 

improvements prior to 

issuance of building permits 

and first Certificate of 

Occupancy. 

4.2.2 Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Project Applicant 

shall pay requisite fees toward the construction of Year 2017 

improvements as summarized at Table 4.2-21 at the 

intersections of:  

 

 Archibald Avenue at Arrow Route (Study Area 

Intersection 2); 

 I-10 EB Ramp at 4th Street (Study Area Intersection 14); 

and  

 Haven Avenue at 4th Street (Study Area Intersection 25). 

 

Prior to issuance of 

building permits. 

Applicant City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City shall verify payment of 

fees at issuance of building 

permits. 

Item B - 17 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

4.2.3 Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Project Applicant 

shall pay requisite fees toward the construction of Year 

required 2020 improvements as summarized at Table 4.2-21 at 

the intersections of: 

 

 Archibald Avenue at Arrow Route (Study Area 

Intersection 2); 

 I-10 EB Ramp at 4th Street (Study Area Intersection 14);  

 Archibald Avenue at 4th Street (Study Area Intersection 

23) 

 Haven Avenue at 4th Street (Study Area Intersection 25); 

 Archibald Avenue at Inland Empire Boulevard (Study 

Area Intersection 28); and 

 Vineyard Avenue at I-10 EB Ramps (Study Area 

Intersection 32) 

 

Prior to issuance of 

building permits. 

Applicant City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City shall verify payment of 

fees at issuance of building 

permits. 

4.2.4  Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Project Applicant 

shall pay requisite fees toward the construction of Year 2035 

improvements as summarized at Table 4.2-24 at the 

intersections of:  

 

 Archibald Avenue at Arrow Route (Study Area 

Intersection 2); 

 Baker Avenue at 8th Street (Study Area Intersection 3); 

 Hellman Avenue at 6th Street (Study Area Intersection 9); 

 Haven Avenue at 6th Street (Study Area Intersection 12); 

Prior to issuance of 

building permits. 

Applicant City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City shall verify payment of 

fees at issuance of building 

permits. 

Item B - 18 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

 Vineyard Avenue at 4th Street (Study Area Intersection 

20); 

  Archibald Avenue at 4th Street (Study Area Intersection 

23); 

 Haven Avenue at 4th Street (Study Area Intersection 25); 

and 

 Archibald Avenue at Inland Empire Boulevard (Study 

Area Intersection 28) 

 

4.2.5 Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Project applicant 

shall participate in the City’s DIF program and in addition 

shall pay the Project’s fair share for the improvements 

identified at Mitigation Measures 4.2.1 through 4.2.4 in the 

amount(s) agreed to by the City and Project Applicant. The 

City shall ensure that the improvements specified at 

Mitigation Measures 4.2.1 through 4.2.4 which are under the 

City of Ontario jurisdiction be  constructed pursuant to the fee 

program at that point in time necessary to avoid identified 

potentially significant impacts. 

 

Prior to issuance of 

building permits. 

Applicant City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City shall verify payment of 

fees at issuance of building 

permits. 

4.2.6 Certain of the improvements identified at Mitigation Measures 

4.2.1 through 4.2.4 are proposed for intersections that either 

share a mutual border with the City of Rancho Cucamonga or 

are wholly located within the City of Rancho Cucamonga. 

Because the City of Ontario does not have plenary control over 

intersections that share a border with the City of Rancho 

Prior to issuance of final 

phase occupancy permits. 

City of Ontario, 

City of Rancho 

Cucamonga 

City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City shall verify completion 

of the study prior to the 

issuance of final phase 

occupancy permits. 

Item B - 19 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

Cucamonga or are wholly located within the City of Rancho 

Cucamonga, the City of Ontario cannot guarantee that such 

improvements will be constructed. Thus, the following 

additional mitigation is required: The City of Ontario shall 

participate in a multi-jurisdictional effort with the City of 

Rancho Cucamonga to develop a study to identify fair share 

contribution funding sources attributable to and paid from 

private and public development to supplement other regional 

and State funding sources necessary to implement the 

improvements identified at Mitigation Measures 4.2.1 through 

4.2.4 that are located in the City of Rancho Cucamonga. The 

study shall include fair-share contributions related to private 

and or public development based on nexus requirements 

contained in the Mitigation Fee Act (Govt. Code § 66000 et 

seq.) and 14 Cal. Code of Regs. §15126.4(a)(4) and, to this end, 

the study shall recognize that impacts attributable to City of 

Rancho Cucamonga facilities that are not attributable to 

development located within the City of Ontario are not paying 

in excess of such developments’ fair share obligations. The fee 

study shall also be compliant with Government Code § 

66001(g) and any other applicable provisions of law. The study 

shall set forth a timeline and other agreed-upon relevant 

criteria for implementation of the recommendations contained 

within the study to the extent the other agencies agree to 

participate in the fee study program. Because the City of 

Ontario and the City of Rancho Cucamonga are responsible to 

Item B - 20 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

implement this mitigation measure, the Project Applicant shall 

have no compliance obligations with respect to this Mitigation 

Measure.  

 

4.2.7 Fair-share amount(s) agreed to by the City and Project 

Applicant for non-DIF improvements at intersections that 

share a mutual border with the City of Rancho Cucamonga, or 

are wholly located within the City of Rancho Cucamonga, shall 

be paid by the Applicant to the City of Ontario prior to the 

issuance of the Project's final certificate of occupancy. The City 

of Ontario shall hold the Project Applicant’s Fair Share 

Contribution in trust and shall apply the Project Applicant’s 

Fair Share Contribution to any fee program adopted or agreed 

upon by the City of Ontario and the City of Rancho 

Cucamonga as a result of implementation of Mitigation 

Measure 4.2.6. If, within five (5) years of the date of collection 

of the Project Applicant’s Fair Share Contribution the City of 

Ontario and the City of Rancho Cucamonga do not comply 

with Mitigation Measure 4.2.6, then the Project Applicant’s 

Fair Share Contribution shall be returned to the Project 

Applicant. 

 

Prior to issuance of final 

certificate of occupancy. 

Applicant City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City shall verify receipt of 

fees before issuance of 

certificate of occupancy. 

 

Item B - 21 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

4.2.8 Certain of the improvements identified at Mitigation 

Measures 4.2.1 through 4.2.4 are proposed for intersections 

under shared City of Ontario/Caltrans jurisdiction. Because 

the City of Ontario does not have plenary control over 

intersections under shared City of Ontario/Caltrans 

jurisdiction, the City of Ontario cannot guarantee that such 

improvements will be constructed. Thus, the following 

additional mitigation is required: The City of Ontario shall 

participate in a multi-jurisdictional effort with Caltrans to 

develop a study to identify fair share contribution funding 

sources attributable to and paid from private and public 

development to supplement other regional and State funding 

sources necessary to implement the improvements identified 

at Mitigation Measures 4.2.1 through 4.2.4 that are under 

shared City of Ontario/Caltrans jurisdiction. The study shall 

include fair-share contributions related to private and or 

public development based on nexus requirements contained 

in the Mitigation Fee Act (Govt. Code § 66000 et seq.) and 14 

Cal. Code of Regs. §15126.4(a)(4) and, to this end, the study 

shall recognize that impacts attributable to Caltrans facilities 

that are not attributable to development located within the 

City of Ontario are not paying in excess of such 

developments’ fair share obligations. The fee study shall also 

be compliant with Government Code § 66001(g) and any 

other applicable provisions of law. The study shall set forth a 

timeline and other agreed-upon relevant criteria for 

Prior to issuance of final 

phase occupancy permits. 

City of Ontario, 

Caltrans 

City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City shall verify completion 

of the study prior to the 

issuance of final phase 

occupancy permits. 

Item B - 22 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

implementation of the recommendations contained within the 

study to the extent the other agencies agree to participate in 

the fee study program. Because the City of Ontario and 

Caltrans are responsible to implement this mitigation 

measure, the Project Applicant shall have no compliance 

obligations with respect to this Mitigation Measure. 

 

4.2.9 Fair-share amount(s) agreed to by the City and Project 

Applicant for non-DIF improvements at intersections that are 

under City of Ontario/Caltrans jurisdiction, shall be paid by 

the Applicant to the City of Ontario prior to the issuance of 

the Project's final certificate of occupancy. The City of 

Ontario shall hold the Project Applicant’s Fair Share 

Contribution in trust and shall apply the Project Applicant’s 

Fair Share Contribution to any fee program adopted or agreed 

upon by the City of Ontario and Caltrans as a result of 

implementation of Mitigation Measure 4.2.8. If, within five 

(5) years of the date of collection of the Project Applicant’s 

Fair Share Contribution the City of Ontario and Caltrans do 

not comply with Mitigation Measure 4.2.8, then the Project 

Applicant’s Fair Share Contribution shall be returned to the 

Project Applicant. 

 

 

 

 

Prior to issuance of final 

certificate of occupancy. 

Applicant City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City shall verify receipt of 

fees before issuance of 

certificate of occupancy. 

Item B - 23 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

Air Quality 

4.3.1  The following requirements shall be incorporated into Project 

plans and specifications in order to ensure implementation of 

SCAQMD Rule 403 and limit fugitive dust emissions: 

 

 All clearing, grading, earth-moving, or excavation 

activities shall cease when winds exceed 25 miles per hour; 

 The contractor shall ensure that all disturbed unpaved 

roads and disturbed areas within the Project site are 

watered at least three (3) times daily during dry weather. 

Watering, with complete coverage of disturbed areas, shall 

occur at least three times a day, preferably in the mid-

morning, afternoon, and after work is done for the day; 

 The contractor shall ensure that traffic speeds on unpaved 

roads and Project site areas are reduced to 15 miles per 

hour or less; and 

 Only “Zero-Volatile Organic Compounds” paints (no 

more than 150 gram/liter of VOC) and/or High Pressure 

Low Volume (HPLV) applications consistent with South 

Coast Air Quality Management District Rule 1113 shall 

be used. 

 

Prior to building plan 

check. 

Applicant. City of Ontario.  At building plan check. 

4.3.2  Grading plans shall reference the requirement that a sign 

shall be posted on-site stating that construction workers need 

to shut off engines at or before five minutes of idling. 

 

Prior to the issuance of 

grading plans. 

Applicant  City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

At issuance of grading 

plans. 

Item B - 24 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

4.3.3  Construction contractors for development proposals within 

the Project site shall ensure implementation of, and 

compliance with, the following provisions and performance 

standards: 

 

 Equipment meeting CARB Tier 4 standards is 

recommended for use if such equipment is available. All 

construction equipment shall be outfitted with Best 

Available Control Technology (BACT) devices certified 

by the CARB. Any emissions control device used by the 

contractor shall achieve emissions reductions that are no 

less than what could be achieved by a Level 3 diesel 

emissions control strategy for a similarly sized engine as 

defined by CARB regulations. 1 

 Diesel trucks employed for site construction activities 

shall meet Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 2007 

model year NOx emissions requirements.  

 A copy of each piece of construction equipment’s certified 

tier specification, BACT documentation, and CARB or 

SCAQMD operating permit shall be provided at the time 

of mobilization of each applicable unit of equipment. 

 Construction contractors are encouraged to apply for 

SCAQMD Surplus Off-Road Opt-In for NOx (SOON) 

funds. Please contact SCAQMD or refer to information 

During grading activity. Construction 

contractor(s) 

City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

Ongoing throughout 

grading activity. 

                                                      
1 Equipment meeting Tier 4 standards is not generally or widely available at present.  

Item B - 25 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

provided at: 

 http://www.aqmd.gov/home/programs/business/business-

detail?title=vehicle-engine-upgrades 

 

4.3.4 Prior to the issuance of building permits, the Project 

Applicant shall submit energy demand calculations to the 

City (Planning and Building Departments)  demonstrating 

that the increment of the Project for which building permits 

are being requested would achieve a minimum 5% increase 

in energy efficiencies beyond incumbent California Building 

Code Title 24 performance standards. Representative energy 

efficiency/energy conservation measures to be incorporated 

in the Project would include, but would not be limited to, 

those listed below (it being understood that the items listed 

below are not all required and merely present examples; the 

list is not all-inclusive and other features that would 

comparably reduce energy consumption and promote energy 

conservation would also be acceptable):  

 

 Increase in insulation such that heat transfer and 

thermal bridging is minimized; 

 Limit air leakage through the structure and/or within 

the heating and cooling distribution system; 

 Use of energy-efficient space heating and cooling 

equipment; 

 Installation of electrical hook-ups at loading dock areas;  

Prior to issuance of 

building permits. 

 

Applicant  City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

At issuance of building 

permits. 

 

Item B - 26 of 68

http://www.aqmd.gov/home/programs/business/business-detail?title=vehicle-engine-upgrades
http://www.aqmd.gov/home/programs/business/business-detail?title=vehicle-engine-upgrades


 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

 Installation of dual-paned or other energy efficient 

windows; 

 Use of interior and exterior energy efficient lighting 

that exceeds then incumbent California Title 24 Energy 

Efficiency performance standards; 

 Installation of automatic devices to turn off lights where 

they are not needed; 

 Application of a paint and surface color palette that 

emphasizes light and off-white colors that reflect heat 

away from buildings; 

 Design of buildings with “cool roofs” using products 

certified by the Cool Roof Rating Council, and/or 

exposed roof surfaces using light and off-white colors;  

 Design of buildings to accommodate photo-voltaic solar 

electricity systems or the installation of photo-voltaic 

solar electricity systems; and 

 Installation of ENERGY STAR-qualified energy-

efficient appliances, heating and cooling systems, office 

equipment, and/or lighting products. 

 

Item B - 27 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

4.3.5  The developer of the industrial phase of the Project 

(Planning Area 1) will install on the roofs of the warehouse 

buildings a photo-voltaic electrical generation system (PV 

system) capable of generating 1,600,000 kilowatt hours per 

year.2 The developer may install the required PV system in 

phases on a pro rata square foot basis as each building is 

completed; or if the PV system is to be installed on a single 

building, all of the PV system necessary to supply the PV 

estimated electrical generation shall be installed within two 

years (24 months) of the first building that does not include 

a PV system receives a certificate of occupancy. 

Prior to issuance of first 

building permit. 

Planning Area 1 

Developer 

City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City to verify before 

issuance of first building 

permit. 

4.3.5.1 The following measures shall be implemented in order to 

reduce Project operational-source VOC, NOx, CO, PM10 

and PM2.5 emissions: 

 

• The Lead Agency shall consider incentives and phase-

in schedules for alternatively fueled trucks. 

• The final Project site plan(s) shall be designed such that 

any truck check-in points are located sufficiently 

interior to the Project site to preclude queuing of trucks 

onto public streets and minimize truck idling times. 

• Truck routes shall be clearly marked acting to minimize 

the potential for truck traffic through residential areas. 

Prior to issuance of 

building permits. 

 

Applicant  City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

At issuance of building 

permits. 

 

                                                      
2 This electricity generation estimate is based on the amount of electricity to be consumed within Planning Area 1 at buildout and full occupancy. 

Item B - 28 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

• Truck operators with year 2006 or older trucks shall 

apply in good faith for Carl Moyer, VIP, Prop 1B or 

similar funding to replace/retrofit their trucks with 

cleaner-than-required engines, equipment, and 

emission reduction technologies. Should funds be 

awarded, the recipient shall accept and use them for 

their intended purpose(s). 

• Electrical panels for warehouse facilities shall be 

appropriately sized to allow for future expanded use to 

include electric charging for trucks and to provide 

power for onboard auxiliary equipment. 

• Residential products developed within the Project site 

shall utilize Energy Star heating, cooling, and lighting 

devices; and Energy Star appliances. 

• Use of outdoor lighting shall be limited to that needed 

for safety and security purposes. 

• Sweepers employed within the Project site shall be non-

diesel. Sweepers equipped with High-Efficiency 

Particulate Arrestance (HEPA) filters are 

recommended for use if such equipment is available. 

• Cleaning products shall be water based, or shall be 

AQMD-certified as “low-VOC” content. 

 

4.3.6  Residential units within the Project site shall include the 

installation and maintenance of air filtration systems with 

efficiencies equal to or exceeding a Minimum Efficiency 

Prior to issuance of first 

building permit. 

Applicant City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City to verify Title 24 

enhanced compliance before 

Item B - 29 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

Reporting Value (MERV) 16 as defined by the American 

Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air Conditioning 

Engineers (ASHRAE) Standard 52.2. 

 

issuance of first building 

permit. 

Noise 

 

    

4.5.1 Prior to approval of grading plans and/or issuance of 

building permits, plans shall include a note indicating that 

noise-generating Project construction activities shall occur 

between the permitted hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on 

weekdays, or Saturdays, and between 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 

p.m. on Sundays. The Project construction supervisor shall 

ensure compliance with the note and the City shall conduct 

periodic inspection at its discretion.  

 

Prior to approval of 

grading plans and/or 

issuance of building 

permits. 

Applicant  City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

At approval of grading 

plans and/or issuance of 

building permits. 

4.5.2 Install temporary noise control barriers that provide a 

minimum noise level attenuation of 10.0 dBA when Project 

construction occurs near existing noise-sensitive structures.  

The noise control barrier must present a solid face from top 

to bottom. The noise control barrier must be high enough and 

long enough to block the view of the noise source.  

Unnecessary openings shall not be made.  

 

 The noise barriers must be maintained and any damage 

promptly repaired. Gaps, holes, or weaknesses in the 

barrier or openings between the barrier and the ground 

shall be promptly repaired. 

Throughout construction Construction 

contractor. 

City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

Ongoing throughout 

construction activity. 

Item B - 30 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

 The noise control barriers and associated elements shall 

be completely removed and the site appropriately 

restored upon the conclusion of the construction 

activity. 

 

4.5.3 During all Project site construction, the construction 

contractors shall equip all construction equipment, fixed or 

mobile, with properly operating and maintained mufflers, 

consistent with manufacturers’ standards. The construction 

contractor shall place all stationary construction equipment 

so that emitted noise is directed away from the noise sensitive 

receivers nearest the Project site. 

 

Throughout construction Construction 

contractor. 

City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

Ongoing throughout 

construction activity. 

4.5.4 The construction contractor shall locate equipment staging 

in areas that will create the greatest distance between 

construction-related noise sources and noise sensitive 

receivers nearest the Project site (i.e., to the south) during all 

Project construction. 

 

Throughout construction Construction 

contractor. 

City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

Ongoing throughout 

construction activity. 

4.5.5 The construction contractor shall limit haul truck deliveries 

to the same hours specified for construction equipment 

(between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on weekdays, 

or Saturdays, and between 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on 

Sundays). The Project Applicant shall prepare a haul route 

exhibit for review and approval by the City of Ontario 

Planning Division prior to commencement of construction 

Throughout construction Construction 

contractor. 

City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

Ongoing throughout 

construction activity. 

Item B - 31 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

activities. The haul route exhibit shall design delivery routes 

to minimize the exposure of sensitive land uses or residential 

dwellings to delivery truck-related noise. 

 

4.5.6 First floor residential patio areas adjacent to Inland Empire 

Boulevard shall include the construction of 6-foot high noise 

barriers. 

 

Prior to issuance of first 

Certificate of Occupancy. 

Applicant  City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City shall verify before 

issuance of first Certificate 

of Occupancy. 

4.5.7 All residential uses proposed within the Specific Plan shall 

be equipped with a means of mechanical ventilation (e.g., air 

conditioning). 

 

Prior to issuance of first 

Certificate of Occupancy. 

Applicant  City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City shall verify before 

issuance of first Certificate 

of Occupancy. 

4.5.8 All second floor residential façades facing Inland Empire 

Boulevard shall require upgraded windows with a minimum 

STC rating of 29. 

 

Prior to issuance of first 

Certificate of Occupancy. 

Applicant  City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City shall verify before 

issuance of first Certificate 

of Occupancy. 

4.5.9 If the Project is developed under the Option A scenario: 

 Construct the recommended 8-foot high noise barriers at the 

western and eastern boundaries of Planning Area 4, as shown 

on Exhibit 10-A of the Noise Impact Analysis. 

 

Prior to issuance of first 

Certificate of Occupancy. 

Applicant  City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City shall verify before 

issuance of first Certificate 

of Occupancy. 

4.5.10  If the Project is developed under the Option B scenario: 

 

 Construct the recommended 8-foot high noise barriers at 

the western and eastern boundaries of Planning Area 4, 

as shown on Exhibit 10-B of the Noise Impact Analysis. 

Prior to issuance of first 

Certificate of Occupancy. 

Applicant  City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City shall verify before 

issuance of first Certificate 

of Occupancy. 

Item B - 32 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

 Construct the recommended 8-foot high noise barrier at 

the southern property boundary at the existing school, as 

shown on Exhibit 10-B of the Noise Impact Analysis. 

 

4.5.11 All trucks, tractors, and forklifts shall be operated with 

proper operating and well maintained mufflers. 

 

Throughout construction Construction 

contractor. 

City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

Ongoing throughout 

construction activity. 

4.5.12 Maintain quality pavement conditions that are free of bumps 

to minimize truck noise. 

 

Ongoing throughout 

Project operations. 

Future tenant. City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

Ongoing throughout Project 

operations. 

4.5.13 The truck access gates and loading docks within the truck 

court on the project site shall be posted with signs which 

state: 

 

 Truck drivers shall turn off engines when not in use; 

 Diesel trucks servicing the Project shall not idle for more 

than five (5) minutes; and  

 Post telephone numbers of the building facilities manager 

to report violations. 

 

Ongoing throughout 

Project operations. 

Future tenant. City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

Ongoing throughout Project 

operations. 

4.5.14 The operation of heavy equipment shall only occur between 

the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on weekdays, or 

Saturdays, and between 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on 

Sundays, and avoided at the Project site boundary nearest 

receiver location R4 whenever feasible. 

 

Throughout construction Construction 

contractor. 

City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

Ongoing throughout 

construction activity. 

Item B - 33 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

Hazards/Hazardous Materials 

4.6.1 Prior to the issuance of grading permits, soil samples shall 

be taken from various areas of the Project site. Any soils 

found to contain pesticide levels in excess of the residential 

and/or industrial/commercial soil screening levels 

(presented in Table 4.6-1 of this EIR) shall be treated onsite 

or disposed of offsite, consistent with Section 4.6.4.5 of this 

EIR. Additional samples shall be collected from the perimeter 

and bottom of the excavation to confirm that pesticide 

concentrations in excess of the screening levels do not 

remain. Any additional impacted soil identified during this 

process shall be removed and additional confirmatory 

samples shall be obtained until non-actionable 

concentrations are obtained. 

 

Prior to the issuance of 

grading permits. 

Applicant and 

contractor(s) 

City of Ontario, 

Planning Department. 

City shall verify prior to the 

issuance of grading permits. 

All soil reports will be 

submitted to the City 

Building Division. 

4.6.2 Prior to demolition or major renovations to the Italo M. 

Bernt School, a comprehensive asbestos and LBP survey 

shall be completed of suspect materials. If discovered, ACMs 

and peeling LBP shall be removed and disposed of by a State-

licensed abatement contractor prior to 

demolition/renovation. Similarly, if during grading 

activities, buried asbestos-containing transite pipes are 

discovered, these materials shall also be removed and 

disposed of by a State-licensed abatement contractor. 

 

Prior to the issuance of 

grading permits. 

Applicant and 

contractor(s) 

City of Ontario, 

Planning Department. 

City shall verify prior to the 

issuance of grading permits. 

All soil reports will be 

submitted to the City 

Building Division. 

Item B - 34 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

 The Project developer shall submit documentation to the 

City Building Department that asbestos and lead-based 

paint issues are not applicable to their property, or that 

appropriate actions, as detailed in Section 4.6.4.5 of this EIR, 

will be taken to abate asbestos or lead-based paint issues prior 

to development of the site. 

 

Biological Resources 

4.9.1 All suitable habitat will be thoroughly surveyed within 72 

hours prior to clearing for the presence of nesting birds by a 

qualified biologist (Project Biologist). The Project Biologist 

shall be approved by the City and retained by the Applicant. 

The survey results shall be submitted by the Project 

Applicant to the City Planning Department. If any active 

nests are detected, the area shall be flagged and mapped on 

the construction plans along with a minimum 300-foot 

buffer, with the final buffer distance to be determined by the 

Project Biologist. The buffer area shall be avoided until, as 

determined by the Project Biologist, the nesting cycle is 

complete or it is concluded that the nest has failed. In 

addition, the Project Biologist shall be present on the site to 

monitor the vegetation removal to ensure that any nests, 

which were not detected during the initial survey, are not 

disturbed. 

 

Throughout construction. Applicant. City of Ontario, 

Planning Department. 

Ongoing throughout 

construction. Applicant 

shall provide survey results 

to City Planning 

Department. 

Item B - 35 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

4.9.2 Burrowing Owl Avoidance: Breeding season avoidance 

measures for the burrowing owl including, but not limited 

to, those that follow shall be implemented. A pre-

construction survey for resident burrowing owls shall be 

conducted by a qualified Project Biologist within 14 30 days 

prior to construction activities. If ground-disturbing 

activities are delayed or suspended for more than 14 30 days 

after the pre-construction survey, the site will be resurveyed 

for owls. Pre-construction survey methodology shall be 

based on Appendix D (Breeding and Non-breeding Season 

Surveys and Reports) of the CDFW Staff Report on 

Burrowing Owl Mitigation (CDFW) March 7, 2012 

(CDFW Burrowing Owl Mitigation Staff Report). Results 

of the pre-construction survey shall be provided to CDFW 

and the City. Should any burrowing owl be found on site, 

CDFW shall be notified of such within 24 hours. If the pre-

construction survey does not identify burrowing owls on the 

Project site, then no further mitigation shall be required. If 

burrowing owls are found to be utilizing the Project site 

during the pre-construction survey, measures shall be 

developed by the Project Biologist in coordination with 

CDFW to avoid impacting occupied burrows during the 

nesting period. These measures shall be based on the most 

current CDFW protocols and would minimally include 

establishment of buffer setbacks from occupied burrows and 

owl monitoring during Project construction activities. 

Within 30 days prior to 

disturbance at the Project 

site. 

Applicant, 

Project Biologist 

City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City shall verify receipt of 

California Department of 

Fish and Wildlife approval 

of Avoidance Plan and 

results of Plan from 

Biologist. 

Item B - 36 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

4.9.3 Burrowing Owl Passive Exclusion: During the non-

breeding season (September 1 through January 31), if 

burrows occupied by migratory or non-migratory resident 

burrowing owls are detected during a pre-construction 

survey, then burrow exclusion and/or closure may be used 

to passively exclude owls from those burrows. Burrow 

exclusion and/or closure shall only be conducted by the 

Project Biologist in consultation and coordination with 

CDFW employing incumbent CDFW guidelines. 

 

Within 30 days prior to 

disturbance at the Project 

site. 

Applicant, 

Project Biologist 

City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City shall verify receipt of 

California Department of 

Fish and Wildlife approval 

of Avoidance Plan and 

results of Plan from 

Biologist. 

4.9.4 Mitigation for Displaced Owls: In consultation with the 

City, Project Applicant, Project Biologist, and CDFW, and 

consistent with mitigation strategies outlined in the CDFW 

Burrowing Owl Mitigation Staff Report, a mitigation plan 

shall be developed for the “take” of any owls displaced 

through Project construction activities. Strategies may 

include, but are not limited to, participation in the 

permanent conservation of off-site habitat replacement 

area(s), and/or purchase of available burrowing owl 

conservation bank credits. 

 

Prior to issuance of 

grading permits. 

Applicant, 

Project Biologist 

City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

City shall verify receipt of 

California Department of 

Fish and Wildlife approval 

of Exclusion Plan and 

results of Plan from 

Biologist. 

Item B - 37 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

4.9.5 Prior to the issuance of any grading permits and prior to any 

physical disturbance of any possible jurisdictional areas, the 

Applicant shall obtain a Regional Board 401 Certification, 

or a written waiver of the requirement for such an agreement 

or permit, from the California Regional Water Quality 

Control Board. Written verification of such a permit or 

waiver shall be provided to the City of Ontario Planning 

Department. 

 

Prior to the issuance of 

any grading permits and 

prior to any physical 

disturbance of any 

possible jurisdictional 

areas. 

Applicant. City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

At issuance of any grading 

permits. 

4.9.6 Prior to the issuance of any grading permits and prior to any 

physical disturbance of any possible jurisdictional areas, the 

Applicant shall obtain a stream bed alteration agreement or 

permit, or a written waiver of the requirement for such an 

agreement or permit, from the California Department of Fish 

and Wildlife. Information to be provided as part of the 

Streambed Alteration Agreement (if required) shall include 

but not be limited to the following: 

 

 Delineation of lakes, streams, and associated habitat 

that will be temporarily and/or permanently impacted 

by the proposed project (include an estimate of impact 

to each habitat type); 

 Discussion of avoidance measures to reduce project 

impacts; and, 

 Discussion of potential mitigation measures required to 

reduce the project impacts to a level of insignificance.  

Prior to the issuance of 

any grading permits and 

prior to any physical 

disturbance of any 

possible jurisdictional 

areas. 

Applicant. City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

At issuance of any grading 

permits and prior to any 

physical disturbance of any 

possible jurisdictional areas. 

Item B - 38 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

 

 Written verification of such a streambed alteration 

agreement/permit, or waiver, shall be provided to the City of 

Ontario Planning Department. 

 

4.9.7 Prior to the issuance of any grading permits and prior to any 

physical disturbance of any possible jurisdictional areas, the 

Applicant shall obtain a 404 permit, or a written waiver of 

the requirement for such an agreement or permit, from the 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. Written verification of such 

a permit or waiver shall be provided to the City of Ontario 

Planning Department. 

 

Prior to the issuance of 

any grading permits and 

prior to any physical 

disturbance of any 

possible jurisdictional 

areas. 

Applicant. City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

At issuance of any grading 

permits and prior to any 

physical disturbance of any 

possible jurisdictional areas. 

Geology and Soils 

4.10.1  Design and development of the Project shall comply with 

recommendations and performance standards identified 

within the Final Geotechnical Study. Where the Project 

Geotechnical Study is silent, requirements of the California 

Building Code as adopted and implemented by the City shall 

prevail. 

 

Prior to building plan 

check. 

Applicant. City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

At building plan check. 

Cultural Resources 

4.11.1 Prior to development approval on the Project site and 

issuance of any grading, building, or other permit 

authorizing ground-disturbing activity, the Project 

Prior to development 

approval on the Project 

site and issuance of any 

Applicant. City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

At development approval 

on the Project site and 

Item B - 39 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

applicant(s) shall include the following wording on all 

construction contract documentation: 

 

  “If during grading or construction activities, cultural 

resources are discovered on the Project site, work shall be 

halted immediately within 50 feet of the discovery and the 

resources shall be evaluated by a qualified archeologist and 

any affected Tribes (Tribes). Any unanticipated cultural 

resources that are discovered shall be evaluated and a final 

report prepared by the qualified archeologist. The report shall 

include a list of the resources discovered, documentation of 

each site/locality, and interpretation of the resources 

identified, and the method of preservation and/or recovery 

for identified resources. In the event the significant resources 

are recovered and if the qualified archaeologist and the Tribe 

determines the resources to be historic or unique, avoidance 

and/or mitigation would be required pursuant to and 

consistent with CEQA Guidelines Sections 15064.5 and 

15126.4 and Public Resources Code Section 21083.2 and the 

Cultural Resources Treatment and Monitoring Agreement 

required under Mitigation Measure 4.11.2.” 

 

grading, building, or 

other permit. 

issuance of any grading, 

building, or other permit. 

4.11.2  At least 30 days prior to seeking a grading permit, the 

Project applicant(s) shall contact potentially affected Tribes 

to notify the Tribes of grading, excavation, and the 

monitoring program and to coordinate with the City of 

At least 30 days prior to 

seeking a grading permit. 

Applicant. City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

At issuance of grading 

permit. 

Item B - 40 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

Ontario and the Tribes to develop a Cultural Resources 

Treatment and Monitoring Agreement. The agreement shall 

include, but not be limited to, outlining provisions and 

requirements for addressing the treatment of cultural 

resources; Project grading and development scheduling; 

terms of compensation for the monitors; and treatment and 

final disposition of any cultural resources, sacred sites, and 

human remains discovered on the site; and establishing on-

site monitoring provisions and/or requirements for 

professional Tribal monitors during all ground-disturbing 

activities. A copy of this signed agreement shall be provided 

to the Planning Director and Building Official prior to the 

issuance of the first grading permit. 

 

4.11.3 Prior to development approval on the Project site and issuance 

of any grading, building, or other permit authorizing 

ground-disturbing activity, the Project applicant(s) shall 

include the following wording on all construction contract 

documentation: 

 

  “If human remains are encountered, California Health and 

Safety Code Section 7050.5 requires that no further 

disturbance shall occur until the Riverside County Coroner 

has made the necessary findings as to origin. Further, 

pursuant to California Public Resources Code Section 

5097.98(b), remains shall be left in place and free from 

Prior to development 

approval on the Project 

site and issuance of any 

grading, building, or 

other permit. 

Applicant. City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

At development approval 

on the Project site and 

issuance of any grading, 

building, or other permit. 

Item B - 41 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

disturbance until a final decision as to the treatment and 

disposition has been made. If the San Bernardino County 

Coroner determines the remains to be Native American, the 

Native American Heritage Commission shall be contacted 

within a reasonable time frame. Subsequently, the Native 

American Heritage Commission shall identify the “most 

likely descendant” within 24 hours of receiving notification 

from the coroner. The most likely descendant shall then have 

48 hours to make recommendations and engage in 

consultations concerning the treatment of the remains as 

provided in Public Resources Code Section 5097.98” 

 

4.11.4 All cultural materials, with the exception of sacred items, 

burial goods, and human remains, which will be addressed 

in the Cultural Resources Treatment and Monitoring 

Agreement required by Mitigation Measure 4.11.2, that are 

collected during the grading monitoring program and from 

any previous archeological studies or excavations on the 

Project site shall be curated according to the current 

professional repository standards. The collections and 

associated records shall be transferred, including title, to the 

affected Tribe’s/Tribes’ curation facility(ies), which meets 

the standards set forth in 36 CRF Part 79 for federal 

repositories.  

 

Throughout 

grading/prior to issuance 

of building permit. 

Qualified 

professional 

archeologist/ 
Applicant. 

City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

At issuance of building 

permit. 

Item B - 42 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

4.11.5 All sacred sites, should they be encountered within the 

Project site, shall be avoided and preserved as the preferred 

mitigation, if feasible as determined by a qualified 

professional in consultation with the affected Tribe(s). To the 

extent that a sacred site cannot be feasibly preserved in place 

or left in an undisturbed state, mitigation measures shall be 

required pursuant to and consistent with Public Resources 

Code Section 21083.2 and CEQA Guidelines Sections 

15064.5 and 15126.4.  

 

Throughout grading. Construction 

contractor. 

City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

Ongoing throughout 

grading. 

4.11.6  Prior to development approval on the Project site and 

issuance of any grading, building, or other permit 

authorizing ground-disturbing activity, the Project 

applicant(s) shall include the following wording on all 

construction contract documentation: 

 

  “If inadvertent discoveries of subsurface archaeological 

resources are discovered during grading, work shall be 

halted immediately within 50 feet of the discovery. The 

developer, the Project archeologist, and the Tribe(s) shall 

assess the significance of such resources and shall meet and 

confer regarding the mitigation for such resources. If the 

developer and the Tribe cannot agree on the significance of 

or the mitigation for such resources, these issues will be 

presented to the City of Ontario Planning Director. The 

Planning Director shall make the determination based on the 

Prior to development 

approval on the Project 

site and issuance of any 

grading, building, or 

other permit. 

Applicant. City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

At development approval 

on the Project site and 

issuance of any grading, 

building, or other permit. 

Item B - 43 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

provisions of CEQA with respect to archaeological resources 

and shall take into account the religious beliefs, customs, and 

practices of the Tribe(s). Notwithstanding any other rights 

available under the law, the decision of the Planning 

Director shall be appealable to the City of Ontario. In the 

event the significant resources are recovered and if the 

qualified archaeologist determines the resources to be 

historic or unique as defined by relevant state and local law, 

avoidance and mitigation would be required pursuant to and 

consistent with Public Resources Code Section 21083.2 and 

CEQA Guidelines Sections 15064.5 and 15126.4.” 

 

4.11.7 To address the possibility that cultural resources may be 

encountered during grading or construction, a qualified 

professional archeologist shall monitor all construction 

activities that could potentially impact archaeological 

deposits (e.g., grading, excavation, and/or trenching). 

However, monitoring may be discontinued as soon the 

qualified professional is satisfied that construction will not 

disturb cultural and/or paleontological resources. 

 

Throughout construction. Applicant. City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

Throughout construction, or 

until the qualified 

professional archeologist is 

satisfied that construction 

will not disturb cultural 

and/or paleontological 

resources. 

4.11.8 Any excavation exceeding eight feet below the current grade 

shall be monitored by a qualified paleontologist. If older 

alluvial deposits are encountered at shallower depths, 

monitoring shall be initialed once these deposits are 

encountered. A qualified paleontologist is defined as an 

Throughout grading and 

excavation activities. 

Applicant. City of Ontario, 

Planning Department 

At issuance of a building 

permit. 

Item B - 44 of 68



 

 

  
Meredith International Centre SPA Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

Final EIR - SCH No. 2014051020 

Table 4.2-1 

Meredith International Centre SPA 

Mitigation Monitoring Plan 

To facilitate coordination and effective implementation of mitigation measures, the mitigation measures provided herein shall appear on all grading plans, construction 

specifications, and bid documents. Incorporation of required notations shall be verified by the City prior to issuance of first development permit. Implementation Entities shall 

comply with listed mitigation requirements. 

Mitigation Measures Mitigation Timing 
Implementation 

Entity 

Monitoring/ 

Reporting Entity 

Monitoring/Reporting 

Frequency 

individual with an M.S. or a Ph.D. in paleontology or 

geology who is familiar with paleontological procedures and 

techniques. A paleontological monitor may be retained to 

perform the on-site monitoring in place of the qualified 

paleontologist. 

 

  The paleontological monitoring program should follow the 

local protocols of the Western Center (Hemet) and/or the San 

Bernardino County Museum and a paleontological 

monitoring plan should be developed prior to the ground 

altering activities. The extent and duration of the 

monitoring can be determined once the grading plan is 

understood and approved. The paleontological monitor shall 

have the authority to halt any Project-related activities that 

may be adversely impacting potentially significant 

resources. If paleontological resources are uncovered or 

otherwise identified, they shall be recovered, analyzed in 

accordance with standard guidelines, and curated with the 

appropriate facility (e.g., the Western Center at the Diamond 

Valley Reservoir, Hemet). 

 

 

Item B - 45 of 68



AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PDEV17-036

SWC Inland Empire Blvd and QVC Way

0110-321-71

Vacant Lot

36,818 SF commercial building for auto dealership

3.9

n/a

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Chuck Mercier

9/8/17

2017-055

n/a

40 ft

100 ft

Item B - 46 of 68



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

 
12/12/17 

Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

reviewer’s Name:  
Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2237 

 
D.A.B. File No.:                                           
 PDEV17-036 Rev 2 

Case Planner: 
Charles Mercier 

Project Name and Location:  
Commercial Building – Infiniti of Ontario 
So side of Inland Empire Blvd. in Meredith SP 
Applicant/Representative: 
Craig Development Corporation 
PO box 1968 
Newport Beach, Ca 92659 
 

 

 
A Preliminary site Plan (received 12/5/17) meets the Standard Conditions for New 
Development and has been approved with the consideration that the following conditions 
below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 

 

A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated     ) has not been approved.                               
Corrections noted below are required prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

CORRECTIONS REQUIRED   
 

Civil Plans received 12/5/17  
1. Locate utilities to not conflict with required tree locations. Coordinate civil plans with landscape 

plans. Relocate electrical transformer out of tree location or rotate 90* and toward the south to 
allow tree and landscape. Not corrected. Revise transformer location or rotate. Do not 
remove required trees for utilities. Move 2 light standards out of tree island planters south 
of building and locate in center of parking row spaces adjacent to islands similar to 2 other 
light locations. 

2. Slopes to be a maximum of 3:1 Change all 2:1 slopes. Not corrected. Revise Section AA and 
sheet 4 basin area to 3:1 slopes to ensure stability of basin landscape slopes. 

3. Add a narrow (min 2’) landscape planter north of the trash enclosure for screening. 
 

Landscape Plans received 10/16/17 – Corrections required 
1. Revise site plan to show 10% of the site with landscape not including right of way or paved areas. 
2. Move signage on NE corner to allow an 8’x8’ space for the tree at the end of the parking row. 
3. Change MAWA call out for overhead spray to dripline system and change IE. 
4. Incorrect MAWA: and show formula 54.6 X 0.62 x ETAF x Area = 381,180 not 585,300. Correct. 
5. Street tree is Koelreuteria bipinnata in the parkway on Inland Empire with Quercus virginiana as 

background trees. Alternating 30’ oc. On site and parking lot trees shall be low litter such as 
Tristania conferta, Fruitless Olive, Podocarpus gracilior, Pistachia chinensis, etc. Use narrow trees 
along property line planters and larger trees: Platanus, Quercus etc. in larger planters and corners.  

6. Add trees in planter islands at each parking row end, (missing at NE corner of building and south 
first 2 rows of parking – 1 tree and each row end). 

7. Change swale plants to ornamental landscape if basins are changed to underground chambers. 
8. Show trees along property lines east and west sides 25-30’ apart.  
9. Show min. 5 deciduous trees along south PL; 40-50’ apart. 
10. Show max 10’ high shrubs along north building planter 
11. Show backflows and transformers with a 4’ set back from paving for landscape screening.  
12. Show all utilities on the landscape plans. Keep utilities clear of required tree locations. 
13. Show landscape hydrozones or note low water users in legend per WUCOLS. 
14. Call out all fences and walls along south and east PL and fence or bollards along Inland Empire 

Item B - 47 of 68



Blvd.,  include materials proposed and heights. 
15. Show concrete mowstrips to identify property lines along open areas or where fences end. 
16. Show minimum on-site tree sizes per the Landscape Development standards, see the Landscape 

Planning website. 5% 48” box, 10% 36 box, 30% 24” box, 55% 15 gallon. 
17. Show 25% of trees as California native (Platanus racemosa, Quercus agrifolia, Quercus wislizenii, 

Quercus douglasii, Cercis occidentalis, Sambucus Mexicana, etc.) in appropriate locations. 
18. Landscape construction plans shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development 

Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards 
19. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for landscape plan 

check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council. Typical fees are: 
 Plan Check—less than 5 acres ..............................................$1,301.00 
 Inspection—Construction (up to 3 inspections per phase) ....... $278.00 
 
Landscape construction plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

Item B - 48 of 68

http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards
mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


Item B - 49 of 68



Item B - 50 of 68



Item B - 51 of 68



Item B - 52 of 68



Item B - 53 of 68



Item B - 54 of 68



Item B - 55 of 68



Item B - 56 of 68



Item B - 57 of 68



Item B - 58 of 68



Item B - 59 of 68



Item B - 60 of 68



Item B - 61 of 68



    

           TO:                  PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Charles Mercier 

     FROM:                 BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear 

 DATE: August 10, 2017 

 SUBJECT: PDEV17-036 

      

   The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time. 

   No comments 

   Report below. 

               

Conditions of Approval 

 

1. Standard Conditions of Approval apply. 
 

 
 

KS:lm 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                  CITY OF ONTARIO 
                                             MEMORANDUM 

Item B - 62 of 68



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  Chuck Mercier, Senior Planner  

  Planning Department 

 

FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 

  Fire Department 

 

DATE:  September 7, 2017 

 

SUBJECT: PDEV17-036 – A Development Plan to construct a 36,818 square foot 

commercial building on 3.999 acres of land generally located south side of 

Inland Empire Boulevard between Vineyard Avenue and QVC Way, 

within the Urban Commercial land use district of the Meredith 

International Centre Specific Plan (APN: 0110-321-71). 

 

 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   No comments. 

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 

 

SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 

 

A. 2016 CBC Type of Construction:  Not Listed (Type V) 

 

B. Type of Roof Materials:  Ordinary 

 

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  29,346 Sq. Ft. 

 

D. Number of Stories:  2  

 

E. Total Square Footage:  368180 Sq. Ft. 

 

F. 2016 CBC Occupancy Classification(s):   

 

  

Item B - 63 of 68



2 of 4 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

 

2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 

 

  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 

designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 

turning radius per Standard #B-005.   

 

  2.4 Access drive aisles which cross property lines shall be provided with CC&Rs, access 

easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected 

properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of building plan check. 

 

  2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be instal-

led in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the 

minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.  

 

  2.6 Security gates or other barriers on fire access roadways shall be provided with a Knox brand 

key switch or padlock to allow Fire Department access.  See Standards #B-003, B-004 and H-

001. 

 

3.0 WATER SUPPLY 

 

  3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code, 

Appendix B, is 1000  gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 2 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per 

square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

 

  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 

spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications. 

 

  3.4 The water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved by the 

Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to assure 

availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

 

4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 

 

  4.2 Underground fire mains which cross property lines shall be provided with CC & R, easements, 

or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected properties, and 

copies of same shall be provided at the time of fire department plan check. The shared use of 

private fire mains or fire pumps is allowable only between immediately adjacent properties 

and shall not cross any public street. 
 

  4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with 

National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 13. All new fire sprinkler systems, 

except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or more 

shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with 

detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire 

Department, prior to any work being done.   

 

Item B - 64 of 68



3 of 4 

  4.4 Wood frame buildings that are to be sprinkled shall have these systems in service (but not 

necessarily finaled) before the building is enclosed. 

 

  4.6 A fire alarm system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with National Fire 

Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 72. An application along with detailed plans shall be 

submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work 

being done.  

 

5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 

 

  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 

development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 

debris both on and off the site. 

 

  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a 

position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  Multi-

tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the rear of 

the building.  Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of 

the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  
 

  5.3 Single station smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are required to be installed per the 

California Building Code and the California Fire Code. 

 

  5.6 Knox ® brand key-box(es) shall be installed in location(s) acceptable to the Fire Department. 

All Knox boxes shall be monitored for tamper by the building fire alarm system. See Standard 

#H-001 for specific requirements. 

 

  5.7  Placards shall be installed in acceptable locations on buildings that store, use or handle 

hazardous materials in excess of the quantities specified in the CFC. Placards shall meet the 

requirements of National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 704. 

 

6.0 OTHER SPECIAL USES 

 

  6.1 The storage, use, dispensing, or handling of any hazardous materials shall be approved by the 

Fire Department, and adequate fire protection features shall be required.  If hazardous materials 

are proposed, a Fire Department Hazardous Materials Information Packet, including 

Disclosure Form and Information Worksheet, shall be completed and submitted with Material 

Safety Data Sheets to the Fire Department along with building construction plans. 

 

  6.2 Any High Piled Storage, or storage of combustible materials greater than twelve (12’) feet in 

height for ordinary (Class I-IV) commodities or storage greater than six feet (6’) in height of 

high hazard (Group A plastics, rubber tires, flammable liquids, etc.) shall be approved by the 

Fire Department, and adequate fire protection features shall be required.  If High Piled Storage 

is proposed, a Fire Department High Piled Storage Worksheet shall be completed and detailed 

racking plans or floor plans submitted prior to occupancy of the building. 

 

  6.3 Underground fuel tanks, their associated piping and dispensers shall be reviewed, approved, 

and permitted by Ontario Building Department, Ontario Fire Department, and San Bernardino 

Item B - 65 of 68



4 of 4 

County Fire Department Hazardous Materials Division. In fueling facilities, an exterior 

emergency pump shut-off switch shall be provided. 

 

Item B - 66 of 68



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  Charles Mercier, Planning Department 

 

FROM:  Douglas Sorel, Police Department 

 

DATE:  August 22, 2017  

 

SUBJECT: PDEV17-036 – A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT AN AUTO 

DEALERSHIP AT INLAND EMPIRE BLVD. AND QVC WAY 

 

 

The “Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Resolution No. 2017-027 apply. The 

applicant shall read and be thoroughly familiar with these conditions, including but not limited 

to, the requirements listed below. 

 

 Required lighting for all walkways, driveways, doorways, parking areas, and other areas 

used by the public shall be provided and operate on photosensor. Photometrics shall be 

provided to the Police Department. Photometrics shall include the types of fixtures 

proposed and demonstrate that such fixtures meet the vandal-resistant requirement. 

Planned landscaping shall not obstruct lighting. 

 Rooftop addresses shall be installed on the building as stated in the Standard Conditions. 

The numbers shall be at a minimum 3 feet tall and 1 foot wide, in reflective white paint 

on a flat black background, and oriented with the bottom of the numbers towards the 

addressed street. 

 The Applicant shall comply with all construction site security requirements as stated in 

the Standard Conditions. 

 

The Applicant is invited to call Douglas Sorel at (909) 395-2873 regarding any questions or 

concerns. 

Item B - 67 of 68



Item B - 68 of 68



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
January 17, 2018 

DECISION NO.: DAB18-[insert #] 

FILE NO.: PMTT14-020 (PM 19552) 

DESCRIPTION: A one-year Time Extension of the expiration date for the approval of File No. 
PMTT14-020, a Tentative Parcel Map (PM 19552) to subdivide a 0.20-acre parcel of land into a single 
parcel for condominium purposes, located on the west side of Euclid Avenue, approximately 450 feet north 
of Elm Street, at 1420 South Euclid Avenue, within the MDR-18 (Medium Density Residential – 11.1 to 18.0 
DU/Acre) zoning district and EA (Euclid Avenue) Overlay district; (APN: 1050-051-01) submitted by 
Johnathan Ma. Planning Commission action is required. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

JOHNATHAN MA, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application requesting 
Development Plan approval, File No. PMTT14-020 (PM 19552), as described in the subject of this Decision 
(herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of a 0.20-acre parcel of land located on the
west side of Euclid Avenue, approximately 450 feet north of Elm Street, at 1420 South Euclid Avenue, and 
is depicted in Exhibit A: Aerial Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning 
designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site, are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site: Single-Family 
Residential 

Medium Density 
Residential MDR-18 & EA N/A 

North: Religious Assembly Low Density 
Residential LDR-5 & EA N/A 

South: Multiple-Family 
Residential 

Medium Density 
Residential MDR-18 & EA N/A 

East: Vacant (across Euclid 
Avenue) 

Neighborhood 
Commercial CN & EA N/A 

West: Religious Assembly Low Density 
Residential LDR-5 & EA N/A 

(2) Project Description: On December 15, 2016, the Planning Commission approved a
Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 19552) to subdivide the 0.20-acre project site into a single parcel for 
condominium purposes. The purpose of the Parcel Map was to facilitate the development of the site with 
two single-family dwellings, and the subsequent individual sale of each dwelling. Final building inspection 
for the two dwellings was approved and occupancy was granted during the fourth quarter of 2016. 

On January 24, 2017, the Planning Commission approved a resolution granting a one-year time extension 
for the tentative parcel map, extending its approval to December 15, 2017, pursuant to the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Section 2.02.025.B (Time Extensions) and the Subdivision Map Act. The time 

Item C - 1 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT14-020 (PM 19552) 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 2 

extension was to allow for the preparation and City approval of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions 
(CC&Rs), which are required to be recorded with the Final Parcel Map. 
 
The Applicant is now requesting a second one-year time extension, which would extend the Tentative 
Parcel Map approval to December 15, 2018. The purpose of the time extension is to provide additional time 
for completion of the required CC&Rs. 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA 
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption 
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; 
 

WHEREAS, on January 17, 2018, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record for 

Item C - 2 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT14-020 (PM 19552) 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 3 

the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written 
and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 (Class 15, Minor Land Divisions) of the CEQA Guidelines, 
which consists of the division of property in urbanized areas zoned for residential, commercial, or industrial 
use into 4 or fewer parcels when the division: 

 
 Is in conformance with the General Plan and zoning; 
 No variances or exceptions are required; 
 All services and access to the proposed parcels conform to local standards and are 

available; 
 The parcel was not involved in a division of a larger parcel within the previous 2 years; 

and 
 The parcel does not have an average slope greater than 20 percent. 

 
(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set 

forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is consistent with the goals, policies, 
plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components 
of The Ontario Plan, and applicable area and specific plans, and planned unit developments. The 

Item C - 3 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT14-020 (PM 19552) 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 4 

proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is located within the Medium Density Residential land use district of 
the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the MDR-18 (Medium Density Residential – 11.1 to 18.0 DU/Acre) 
zoning district and EA (Euclid Avenue) Overlay district. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the 
goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute to providing “a spectrum of housing types 
and price ranges that match the jobs in the City, and that make it possible for people to live and work in 
Ontario and maintain a quality of life” (Goal LU1). Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy to 
“incorporate a variety of land uses and building types that contribute to a complete community where 
residents at all stages of life, employers, workers, and visitors, have a wide spectrum of choices of where 
they can live, work, shop, and recreate within Ontario” (Policy LU1-6 Complete Community). 
 

(2) The design or improvement of the proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is consistent 
with the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council 
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, and applicable specific plans and planned unit 
developments. The proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is located within the Medium Density Residential 
land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the MDR-18 (Medium Density Residential – 11.1 to 
18.0 DU/Acre) zoning district and EA (Euclid Avenue) Overlay district. The proposed design or improvement 
of the subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan 
(General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute 
to providing “[a] high level of design quality resulting in public spaces, streetscapes, and developments that 
are attractive, safe, functional and distinct” (Goal CD2). Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s 
policy to “create distinct residential neighborhoods that are functional, have a sense of community, 
emphasize livability and social interaction, and are uniquely identifiable places through such elements as: 
 

 A pattern of smaller, walkable blocks that promote access, activity and safety; 
 Variable setbacks and parcel sizes to accommodate a diversity of housing types; 
 Traffic calming measures to slow traffic and promote walkability while maintaining 

acceptable fire protection and traffic flows; 
 Floor plans that encourage views onto the street and de-emphasize the visual and 

physical dominance of garages (introducing the front porch as the “outdoor living room”), as appropriate; 
and 

 Landscaped parkways, with sidewalks separated from the curb.” (Policy CD2-2 
Neighborhood Design). 
 

(3) The site is physically suitable for the type of development proposed. The project site 
meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of the MDR-18 (Medium Density Residential – 11.1 to 18.0 
DU/Acre) zoning district and EA (Euclid Avenue) Overlay district, and is physically suitable for the type of 
residential development proposed in terms of zoning, land use and development activity proposed, and 
existing and proposed site conditions. 
 

(4) The site is physically suitable for the density/intensity of development proposed. 
The project site is proposed for residential development at a density of 11.1 DUs/acre. The project site 
meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of the MDR-18 (Medium Density Residential – 11.1 to 18.0 
DU/Acre) zoning district and EA (Euclid Avenue) Overlay district, and is physically suitable for this proposed 
density / intensity of development. 
 

(5) The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or 
their habitat. The project site is not located in an area that has been identified as containing species 
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies or 
regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, nor 
does the site contain any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community, and no wetland habitat is 
present on site; therefore, the design of the subdivision, or improvements proposed thereon, are not likely 

Item C - 4 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT14-020 (PM 19552) 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 5 

to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or their 
habitat. 
 

(6) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, are not likely to 
cause serious public health problems. The design of the proposed subdivision, and the improvements 
proposed on the project site, are not likely to cause serious public health problems, as the project is not 
anticipated to involve the transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials during either construction or 
project implementation, include the use of hazardous materials or volatile fuels, nor are there any known 
stationary commercial or industrial land uses within close proximity to the subject site that use/store 
hazardous materials to the extent that they would pose a significant hazard to visitors or occupants to the 
project site. 
 

(7) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, will not conflict 
with easements acquired by the public at large for access through, or use of property within, the 
proposed subdivision. The proposed subdivision has provided for all necessary public easements and 
dedications for access through, or use of property within, the proposed subdivision. Furthermore, all such 
public easements and dedications have been designed pursuant to: (a) the requirements of the Policy Plan 
component of The Ontario Plan and applicable area plans; (b) applicable specific plans or planned unit 
developments; (c) applicable provisions of the City of Ontario Development Code; (d) applicable master 
plans and design guidelines of the City; and (e) applicable Standard Drawings of the City. 
 

SECTION 5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission APPROVE 
the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included as 
Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of January 2018. 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item C - 5 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT14-020 (PM 19552) 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 6 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 
  Project Site 

Item C - 6 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT14-020 (PM 19552) 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 7 

Exhibit B—TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP (APPROVED 12/15/2016) 
 
 
 

Item C - 7 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT14-020 (PM 19552) 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 

Item C - 8 of 31



-1- 

 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 

File No. PMTT14-020 (PM 19552) 
 
 
Date: November 17, 2014 
 
Project Description: A Parcel Map (PM 19552) to subdivide a 0.20-acre parcel of land 
into a single parcel for condominium purposes, located on the west side of Euclid Avenue, 
approximately 450 feet north of Elm Street, at 1420 South Euclid Avenue, within the C1 
(Neighborhood Commercial) and EA (Euclid Avenue) Overlay zoning districts. (APN: 
1050-051-01); submitted by submitted by Johnathan Ma. 
 
 
Reviewed by: Charles Mercier, Senior Planner 
Phone: (909) 395-2425; Email: cmercier@ci.ontario.ca.us; Fax: (909) 395-2420 
 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
The above-described Development Plan application shall comply with the following 
conditions of approval: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard 
Conditions for New Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 1020-021, on 
March 16, 2010. A copy of the Standard Conditions for New Development may be 
obtained from the Planning Department or the City Clerk. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New 
Development identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the 
following special conditions of approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. Project approval shall become null and void 2 years following 
the effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and 
construction is commenced, and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time 
extension has been approved. This condition does not supersede any individual time 
limits specified herein, or any other departmental conditions of approval applicable to the 
Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 Subdivision Map. The final parcel map shall be in conformance with the 
approved tentative parcel map on file with the City. Any variation from the approved 

Item C - 9 of 31

mailto:cmercier@ci.ontario.ca.us


Planning Department Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT14-020 (PM 19552) 
 
 

-2- 

tentative parcel map shall be reviewed and approved by the Planning Department. Any 
substantive variation or change may require Planning Commission approval. 
 

2.3 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 (Minor Land 
Divisions) of the CEQA Guidelines. 
 

(b) The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, 
the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or 
proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set 
aside, void or annul any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by its City Council, 
Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of Ontario shall 
promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of 
Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

Item C - 10 of 31



Airport Land Use Compatibility Planning 
Consistency Evaluation Report

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

Cktrqtv"KpÞwgpeg"Ctgc<

CONSISTENCY EVALUATION DETERMINATION

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CE No.:

PALU No.:

ANALYSIS

ONT ALUCP COMPATIBILITY FACTORS (Check all that Apply)

Safety Zones N oise Impact Zones Airspace Protection QxgtÞkijv

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone

Rkgteg"Rctv"99"Uwthcegu

HCC"PqvkÝecvkqp

Avigation Easement

Tgeqtfgf"QxgtÞkijv

Tgcn"Guvcvg"Fkuenquwtg

Cktrqtv"KpÞwgpeg"Ctgc

CHINO ALUCP COMPATIBILITY FACTORS (Check all that Apply)

Zone A Zone B1 Zone C Zone D Zone E

Cktrqtv"Rncppgt"Ukipcvwtg<

PMTT14-020

1420 South Euclid Ave

1050-051-01

Undeveloped Land

Parcel map for residential land use

.20

N/A

ONT

See Attached

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Clarice Burden

7/17/14

2014-042

n/a

Item C - 11 of 31



CE No.:

PALU No.:

Airport Land Use Compatibility Planning 
Consistency Evaluation Report

PROJECT CONDITIONS

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(ALUCP) for ONT provided the following conditions are met.

1. New Residential land uses within the 60-65 dB CNEL noise impact zone must incorporate exterior-to-interior noise
level reduction (NLR) design features and be capable of attenuating exterior noise to 45 dB interior noise level,
acoustical data documenting that the structure will be designed to comply with the criteria must be provided.

2. New Residential land uses are required to have a Recorded Overflight Notification appearing on the Property Deed
and Title incorporating the following language:

(NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY: This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is
known as an airport influence area. For that reason, the property may be subject to some of the annoyances or
inconveniences associated with proximity to airport operations (for example: noise, vibration, or odors). Individual
sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from person to person. You may wish to consider what airport annoyances,
if any, are associated with the property before you complete your purchase and determine whether they are acceptable
to you.)

2014-042

n/a

Item C - 12 of 31



Item C - 13 of 31



 

Item C - 14 of 31



Item C - 15 of 31



Item C - 16 of 31



Item C - 17 of 31



Item C - 18 of 31



Item C - 19 of 31



Item C - 20 of 31



Item C - 21 of 31



Item C - 22 of 31



Item C - 23 of 31



Item C - 24 of 31



Item C - 25 of 31



Item C - 26 of 31



 

 TO: PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Clarice Burden 

 FROM: BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear 

 DATE: June 18, 2014 

 SUBJECT: PMTT14-020 

      

 

 1. The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time. 

   No comments.   

 
 
 
cc:  File 
 
KS:kb 

 

                  CITY OF ONTARIO 
                                             MEMORANDUM 

Item C - 27 of 31



Item C - 28 of 31



 
 

 

CITY OF O�TARIO 
MEMORA�DUM 

 
 
TO:  Chuck Mercier, Planning Department 
 
FROM:  Lora L. Gearhart, Plan Checker  
  Bureau of Fire Prevention 
 
DATE:  October 15, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: PMTT14-020 – A PARCEL MAP (PM 19552) TO SUBDIVIDE A 0.20-

ACRE PARCEL OF LA�D I�TO A SI�GLE PARCEL FOR 
CO�DOMI�IUM PURPOSES, LOCATED O� THE WEST SIDE OF 
EUCLID AVE�UE, APPROXIMATELY 450 FEET �ORTH OF ELM 
STREET, AT 1420 SOUTH EUCLID AVE�UE, WITHI� THE C1 
(�EIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL) A�D EA (EUCLID AVE�UE) 
OVERLAY ZO�I�G DISTRICTS (AP�: 1050-051-01). RELATED FILE: 
PZC14-001 -- A REQUEST TO CHA�GE THE ZO�I�G O� THE 
PROPERTY TO R2 (MEDIUM DE�SITY RESIDE�TIAL). 

 
 
   The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time. 

   No comments 

   Report below. 

 
 
CO�DITIO�S OF APPROVAL: 

 
1. The required fire flow for this tract is 1,500 g.p.m. x 2 hours.  Fire flow calculations are 

approximations only.  Final determination and plotted by Engineering and Fire Departments 
per established standard criterion. 

 
2. Fire hydrant locations and appropriate main sizes will be determined and plotted by 

Engineering and Fire Departments pre-established standard criterion. 
 

5. The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 
development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 
debris both on and off the site. 

 
6. Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new in such a position as to be plainly 

visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property and comply with the Section 

Item C - 29 of 31



 

9-1.3280 Street Naming and Street Address Numbering of the Ontario Municipal Code and 
Ontario Fire Department Standards #H-002.   
 

7. All dwellings shall be equipped with a residential fire sprinkler system. 
 
 
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 
www.ci.ontario.ca.us, click on Fire Department and then on forms. 

 

Item C - 30 of 31



Item C - 31 of 31



 

Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
January 17, 2018 

 
DECISION NO.: DAB18-[insert #] 
 
FILE NO.: PDEV17-028 
 
DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan to construct 37 multiple-family apartment units on 1.13 acres 
of land generally located on the north side of Sixth Street, approximately 150 feet east of Interstate 10, at 
941 East Sixth Street, within the HDR-45 (High Density Residential – 25.1 to 45.0 DU/Acre) zoning district 
(APNs: 1047-172-03 and 1047-172-19); submitted by Kirk Wallace. Planning Commission action is 
required. 
 
 
 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 
 

KIRK WALLACE, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application requesting 
Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV17-028, as described in the subject of this Decision (herein after 
referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 
 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 1.13 acres of land generally located on 
the north side of Sixth Street, approximately 150 feet east of Interstate 10, at 941 East Sixth Street, and is 
depicted in Exhibit A: Aerial Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning 
designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 
 

 Existing Land Use General Plan Designation Current Zoning Designation Proposed Zoning Designation 

Site Single-family dwellings HDR (High Density 
Residential) 

MDR-18 (Medium Density 
Residential – 11.1 to 18.0 

DU/Acre) 

HDR-45 (High Density 
Residential – 25.1 to 45.0 

DU/Acre) 

North 
Multiple-family dwellings & 

Bella Vista Health Care 
(rehabilitation center) 

MDR (Medium Density 
Residential) MDR-18 MDR-18 

South Single-family dwellings HDR MDR-18 HDR-45 

East Bright Star Montessori 
Preschool HDR MDR-18 HDR-45 

West Diamondpoint Apartments HDR MDR-18 HDR-45 

 
(2) Project Description: The Applicant is requesting development plan approval for the 

construction of 37 multiple-family residential units, at a density of 32.74 dwelling units per acre of land. The 
project site currently lies within the MDR-18 (11.1 to 18.0 DU/Acre) zoning district; however, a City initiated 
Zone Change (File No. PZC17-001) is being processed concurrently with the proposed project, which will 
change the zoning on the project site, as-well-as surrounding properties, to HDR-45 (25.1 to 45.0 DU/Acre), 
so as to be consistent with the Land Use Plan (Exhibit LU-1) of the Policy Plan (general plan) component 
of The Ontario Plan, which designates the project site for High Density Residential development. Pursuant 
to the project’s conditions of approval, the HDR-45 zoning district must be in place prior to the issuance of 
a building permit for the proposed project, thereby allowing for the proposed density of development. 
 

The project consists of a single apartment building designed with a first floor concrete 
podium slab and bearing walls, which house a lobby area, parking garage, refuse collection facilities, tenant 
storage facilities, and mechanical and electrical rooms. A two-story wood-framed superstructure, containing 

Item D - 1 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-028 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 2 

37 dwellings in a stacked flat configuration, is designed on top of the podium, for an overall height of 3 
stories (37.5 feet). 
 

Four different floor plans are proposed, with unit sizes ranging from 945 to 1,217 square 
feet. All floor plans are two-bedrooms/two-bathrooms designs. The Dwelling Unit Statistics has been 
included in the Technical Appendix of this report. 
 

The open space requirements of the Development Code requires that the project provide 
a minimum of 60 square feet of private open space, and 250 square feet of common open space, per 
dwelling unit. The project has provided each dwelling with a balcony having a minimum horizontal 
dimension of 7 feet, and an area ranging from 69 to 74 square feet, meeting the minimum private open 
space requirements for the project. Additionally, approximately 352.7 square feet of common open space 
per dwelling unit has been provided (totaling 13,050 square feet), which exceeds the minimum common 
open space requirements for the project. 
 

With a total of 37 dwellings, the project’s minimum requirements for common recreation 
amenities is one major facility and one minor facility. Recreation amenities provided with the project include 
a 945-square foot gym (major amenity) and a barbecue area with picnic tables (minor amenity) located on 
the podium deck (second floor). 
 

A total of 84 off-street parking spaces have been provided, exceeding the minimum off-
street parking requirements for the project. The off-street parking statistics for the project are as follows: 
 

Type of Use No. DUs Parking Ratios Spaces 
Required 

Spaces 
Provided 

Multiple-Family Residential 37 

Required: 2.0 spaces per dwelling, including one space 
in a garage or carport. 
Provided: 2.0 spaces per dwelling in a garage. 

83 84 

 Plan A (2 Bdrm/2 Ba) 21 42 42 

 Plan B (2 Bdrm/2 Ba) 2 4 4 

 Plan C (2 Bdrm/2 Ba) 10 20 20 

 Plan D (2 Bdrm/2 Ba) 4 8 8 

Guest/Visitor  One space per 4 dwellings 9 10 

 
The building exterior design is in keeping with the Modern vernacular, free of clutter and 

unnecessary elements, and incorporating strong linear elements, bold horizontal and vertical features, 
multiple changes in the parapet line, and focuses on the use of modern materials. The exterior building 
elevations incorporate a decorative masonry block base and vertical feature walls; a light sand stucco finish 
on the body of the building, with bold-colored stucco accent walls, window surrounds, and window canopies; 
decorative sconce lighting; and decorative tube steel at openings for podium ventilation. The mechanical 
equipment will be roof-mounted and obscured from public view by the parapet walls and, if necessary, 
equipment screens, which will incorporate design features consistent with the building architecture. 
 

The project provides substantial landscaping the full length of the project street frontages, 
within the off-street parking area, and throughout stormwater retention areas, for an overall landscape 
coverage of approximately 21.5 percent. A landscaped setback has been provided along the full length of 
the Sixth Street frontage, 20 feet in depth, and along the Deodar Street frontage, 48 feet in depth, measured 
from the street property line to the building. Furthermore, intensely landscaped side yard areas, varying 
from 10 to 18 feet in width, have been provided, which include pedestrian connections through the project 
site, and the podium level deck incorporates raised planters, with trees and perennial plantings. 
 

Item D - 2 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-028 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 3 

A variety of accent and shade trees in 24-inch, 36-inch and 48-inch box sizes have been 
provided to enhance the project. Moreover, decorative paving and lighting will be provided at vehicular 
entries, pedestrian walkways, and other key locations within the project. 
 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA 
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption 
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; 
 

WHEREAS, on January 17, 2018, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record for 
the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written 
and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows: 

Item D - 3 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-028 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 4 

(1) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, Infill Development) of the CEQA Guidelines, 
which consists of projects characterized as infill development, which meet the following conditions: 
 

 The project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all 
applicable general plan policies as well as with applicable zoning designation and regulations; 

 The proposed development occurs within city limits on a project site of no more 
than five acres substantially surrounded by urban uses; 

 The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened 
species; 

 Approval of the project would not result in any significant effects relating to 
traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and 

 The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. 
 

(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set 
forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the HDR (High Density 
Residential) land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and will be in the HDR-45 (25.1 to 45.0 
DU/Acre) zoning district at the time of project construction. The development standards and conditions 

Item D - 4 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-028 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 5 

under which the proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, 
plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The 
Ontario Plan; and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the HDR-45 (25.1 
to 45.0 DU/Acre) zoning district, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed (High 
Density Residential), as-well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, number 
of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and 
obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Development Code are maintained; [ii] 
the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will not result in any 
significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in which it is located; and 
[v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy Plan components 
of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Development Code that are applicable to the proposed Project, including 
building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading 
spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and fences 
and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to the particular land 
use being proposed ([insert land use]). As a result of this review, the Development Advisory Board has 
determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be 
consistent with the development standards and guidelines described in the Development Code. 
 

SECTION 5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 
  

Item D - 5 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-028 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 6 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of January 2018. 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item D - 6 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-028 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 7 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 
  

DEODAR  STREET 

6TH  STREET 

PROJECT SITE 

Item D - 7 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-028 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 8 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN/GARAGE LEVEL FLOOR PLAN 
 
  

Item D - 8 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-028 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit C—–PODIUM LEVEL FLOOR PLAN (SECOND LEVEL) 
 
  

Item D - 9 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-028 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit D—THIRD FLOOR PLAN 
 
  

Item D - 10 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-028 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 11 

Exhibit E-1—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS 
 
  

Item D - 11 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-028 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 12 

Exhibit E-2—EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS 
 
 

Item D - 12 of 44



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-028 
January 17, 2018 
 
 

Page 13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 

Item D - 13 of 44



Meeting Date: 01/23/2018

File No: PDEV17-028 

Related Files: N/A 

Project Description: A Development Plan to construct 37 multiple-family apartment units on 1.13 acres 
of land, at a density of 32.74 DU/Acre, generally located on the north side of Sixth Street, approximately 
150 feet east of Interstate 10, at 941 East Sixth Street, within the HDR-45 (High Density Residential – 25.1 
to 45.0 DU/Acre) zoning district. (APNs: 1047-172-03 and 1047-172-19); submitted by Kirk Wallace. 

Prepared By: Charles Mercier, Senior Planner 
Phone: 909.395.2425 (direct) 
Email: cmercier@ontarioca.gov 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 

1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 

2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 

2.1 Time Limits. 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director. 
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental 
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 

Planning Department 

Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item D - 14 of 44

mailto:cmercier@ontarioca.gov


Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV17-028 
Page 2 of 5 

 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation 
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape 
Planning Division. 
 

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been 
approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation 
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be 
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement 
of the changes. 
 

(e) At the podium deck, provide fully landscaped raised planters within the required 
10-foot active open space setback from habitable space and at the exterior wall of the gym, as shown 
below. 

 

Legend: 

Landscaped area to 
be added 

Item D - 15 of 44



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV17-028 
Page 3 of 5 

 
 

(f) The podium deck shall be provided with a decorative finish, such as stamped 
concrete, interlocking pavers, tile (ceramic, concrete or clay), scored with integral color or stained finish, or 
other approved finish. The final design shall be subject to approval by the Planning Director. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with all applicable off-street parking, loading, lighting, and 
design requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

(b) All drive approaches shall be provided with an enhanced pavement treatment. The 
enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, to the first intersecting 
drive aisle or parking space. 
 

(c) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street parking 
and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of 
materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than parking. 
 

(d) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be 
provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained 
in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 
 

(e) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the 
physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law 
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 
 

(f) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure 
facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current regulations 
contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11). 
 

2.6 Site Lighting. 
 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting 
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building Provisions) and Section 
4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to confine emitted light to the parking 
areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell 
switch. 
 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or 
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 
 

2.7 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. 
 

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning equipment, and 
all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by parapet walls or roof screens 
that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the building architecture. 
 

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, transformers, 
HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view from a public street, or 
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low garden walls. 
 

Item D - 16 of 44



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV17-028 
Page 4 of 5 

 
 

2.8 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario 
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 
 

2.9 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development 
Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations). 
 

2.10 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not 
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public 
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 
 

2.11 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated 
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, Infill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines, 
meeting the following conditions: 
 

(i) The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and 
all applicable general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations; 

(ii) The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no 
more than five acres, and is substantially surrounded by urban uses; 

(iii) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or 
threatened species; 

(iv) Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to 
traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and 

(v) The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and 
public services. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

2.12 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.13 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Exemption (NOE) 
filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made payable to 
the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County Clerk of 
the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

Item D - 17 of 44



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV17-028 
Page 5 of 5 

 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.14 Additional Requirements. 
 

(a) Project approval shall not be final and complete until File No. PZC-17-001 has 
been approved by ordinance of the City Council of the City of Ontario, and enacted on the project site 
pursuant to State law. 
 

(b) The stucco finish specified for the building exterior shall be a smooth or light sand 
exterior cement plaster. 
 

(c) The concrete block specified for the building exterior shall have a decorative finish, 
such as split-face, burnished or shot-blast concrete block, or other decorative finish approved by the 
Planning Department. The use of precision concrete block shall not be acceptable. 
 

Item D - 18 of 44



AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PDEV17-028

931 & 947 East Sixth Street

1047-172-03 & 09

Single Family Residential Homes

37 unit multi-family apartment units

1.13

n/a

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

See attached Real Estate Transaction Disclosure condition.

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Chuck Mercier

9/7/17

2017-047

n/a

38 feet

70 ft

Item D - 19 of 44



CD No.:

PALU No.:

PROJECT CONDITIONS

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 2

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for ONT. The applicant
is required to meet the Real Estate Transaction Disclosure in accordance with California Codes (Business and
Professions Code Section 11010-11024). New residential subdivisions within an Airport Influence Area are required
to file an application for a Public Report consisting of a Notice of Intention (NOI) and a completed questionnaire with
the Department of Real Estate and include the following language within the NOI:

NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY
This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is known as an airport influence area. For
that reason, the property may be subject to some of the annoyances or inconveniences associated with proximity to
airport operations (for example: noise, vibration, or odors). Individual sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from
person to person. You may wish to consider what airport annoyances, if any, are associated with the property before
you complete your purchase and determine whether they are acceptable to you.

2017-047

Item D - 20 of 44



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

 
12/20/17 

Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

eviewer’s Name:  
Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2237 

 
D.A.B. File No.:                                           
 PDEV17-028 Rev 3 

Case Planner: 
Charles Mercier 

Project Name and Location:  
Multi-Family Apartments 
931, 947 East Sixth St 
Applicant/Representative: 
Kirk Wallace 
240 Cliff Rd 
Upland, Ca 91784 

 

 
A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated 12/4/17 ) meets the Standard Conditions for New 
Development and has been approved with the consideration that the following conditions 
below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 

 

A Preliminary Landscape Plan (dated     ) has not been approved.                               
Corrections noted below are required prior to Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

CORRECTIONS REQUIRED   
 

Civil Plans 
1. Dimension and show on construction plans for backflows (fire, domestic and irrigation) and 

transformers to be set back a minimum of 4’ set back from paving. 
2. Call out all utilities in parkways for street tree placement. 
3. Show any bains or swales (max 50% of landscape width) that connects to ‘undersidewalk drain for 

overflow’. 
4. Note for compaction to be no greater than 85% at landscape areas. All finished grades at 1 ½” 

below finished surfaces. Slopes to be maximum 3:1. Add note for uncompacting landscape 
areas along property perimeter 5’ from building walls by fracturing the soil (per city 
standards) on construction plans.  

 
Landscape Plans 
5. Show existing trees to remain, or existing trees on adjacent property to remain on plan. 
6. Space street trees evenly,keep tree trunks out of sewer easement (mulch area ok in easement) 
7. In courtyard show turf grass play area, pavers or rubber surfacing or appropriate surfacing 

material. Not corrected. Date palms are too wide for opening shown. 
8. Add details for fences and walls and raised planter materials, materials proposed and heights. 

Including wall or guardrail at courtyard opening on construction plans. 
9. Show minimum on-site tree sizes per the Landscape Development standards., Change 48” 

Lirodendron to Quercus in the larger planter. 
10. Show 25% of (on-site) trees as California native (Quercus agrifolia, Quercus wislizenii, Quercus 

douglasii, Cercis occidentalis, etc.) in appropriate locations. Not corrected. 
11. Show all proposed sign locations (on buildings and in landscape) to avoid conflicts with trees, 

shrubs or basin areas. (Building signs, not landscape signs). Not corrected. 
12. Show vines on metal trellis in narrow planter by turf block. Add grass or groundcover in turf block. 
13. Change low wide Rhaphiolepis to tall narrow shrubs along block walls to screen, Ligustrum, 

Montery Bay Eugenia, etc. 
14. Landscape construction plans shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development 

Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards 
15. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for landscape plan 

check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council. Typical fees are: 

Item D - 21 of 44

http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards


Plan Check—less than 5 acres ..............................................$1,301.00 
Inspection—Construction (up to 3 inspections per phase) ...... $278.00 

            $1579.00 
Landscape construction plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

Item D - 22 of 44

mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


Item D - 23 of 44



Item D - 24 of 44



Item D - 25 of 44



Item D - 26 of 44



Item D - 27 of 44



Item D - 28 of 44



Item D - 29 of 44



Item D - 30 of 44



Item D - 31 of 44



Item D - 32 of 44



Item D - 33 of 44



Item D - 34 of 44



Item D - 35 of 44



Item D - 36 of 44



Item D - 37 of 44



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  PLANNING DEPARTMENT, Chuck Mercier 

 

FROM:  BUILDING DEPARTMENT, Kevin Shear 

 

DATE:  July 12, 2017 

 

SUBJECT: PDEV17-028 

 

 

   The plan does adequately address the departmental concerns at this time. 

   No comments 

   Report below. 

 

 

Conditions of Approval 
 
1. The address for the project is: 941 East Sixth Street. 

 
2. Standard conditions of approval shall apply. 

 
 
KS:lm 

 

Item D - 38 of 44



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  Charles Mercier, Senior Planner  

  Planning Department 

 

FROM:  Lora L. Gearhart, Fire Protection Analyst 

  Fire Department 

 

DATE:  July 24, 2017 

 

SUBJECT: PDEV17-028 – A A Development Plan To Construct 37 Multi-Family 

Apartment Units 1.13 Acres Of Land Within The HDR45 Zoning District, 

Generally Located On The North Side Of Sixth Street, Approximately 150 

Feet East Of Interstate 10, At 941 East Sixth Street (APNs: 1047-172-03 & 

1047-172-19). 

 

 

 The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

 No comments. 

 Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 The plan does not adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

 No comments. 

 Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 

 

SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 

 

A. 2016 CBC Type of Construction:  Unknown 

 

B. Type of Roof Materials:  Unknown 

 

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  30,424 Sq. Ft. 

 

D. Number of Stories:   3 Stories 

 

E. Total Square Footage:   90,787 Sq. Ft. 

 

F. 2016 CBC Occupancy Classification(s):  R, U 

Item D - 39 of 44



File No. PDEV17-028 Page 2 of 4 

July 24, 2017 

 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

 

1.0 GENERAL 

 

  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 

development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and 

the current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that 

the applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) 

and that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 

395-2029. For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of 

Ontario web site at www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards 

and Forms.” 

 

  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all 

construction drawings.  

 

2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 

 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions 

of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. 

Roadways shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty 

(24) ft. wide. See Standard #B-004.   

 

  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall 

be designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) 

outside turning radius per Standard #B-005.   

 

  2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length 

shall have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.   

 

  2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be 

installed in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the 

minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.  

 

  2.6 Security gates or other barriers on fire access roadways shall be provided with a Knox 

brand key switch or padlock to allow Fire Department access.  See Standards #B-003, B-

004 and H-001. 

 

3.0 WATER SUPPLY 

 

  3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire 

Code, Appendix B, is 4000  gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 4 hours at a minimum of 20 

pounds per square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

 

Item D - 40 of 44

file://ont-chfs02/Shared/Fire/Fire%20Prevention/Development/DAB%20Comments/www.ontarioca.gov


File No. PDEV17-028 Page 3 of 4 

July 24, 2017 

 

 

  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a 

minimum spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department speci-

fications. 

 

  3.4 The public water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and 

approved by the Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible 

construction to assure availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

 

4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 

 

  4.1 On-site private fire hydrants may be required depending on locations of public hydrants 

per Standard #D-005, and identified in accordance with Standard #D-002.  Installation and 

locations(s) are subject to the approval of the Fire Department. An application with detailed 

plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, 

prior to any work being done.    

 

  4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance 

with National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 13. All new fire sprinkler 

systems, except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads 

or more shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along 

with detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire 

Department, prior to any work being done.   

 

  4.4 Fire Department Connections (FDC) shall be located on the address side of the building 

within one hundred fifty feet (150’) of a public fire hydrant on the same side of the street.  

Provide identification for all fire sprinkler control valves and fire department connections 

per Standard #D-007. Raised curbs adjacent to Fire Department connection(s) shall be 

painted red, five feet either side, per City standards. 

 

  4.5 A fire alarm system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with National 

Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 72. An application along with detailed plans 

shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior 

to any work being done.  

 

  4.6 Portable fire extinguishers are required to be installed prior to occupancy per Standard #C-

001.  Please contact the Fire Prevention Bureau to determine the exact number, type and 

placement required. 

    

5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 

 

  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of 

the development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible 

trash and debris both on and off the site. 

 

  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such 

a position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  

Item D - 41 of 44



File No. PDEV17-028 Page 4 of 4 

July 24, 2017 

 

 

Multi-tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on 

the rear of the building.  Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 

9-1 6.06 of the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  

 

  5.3 Single station smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are required to be installed per 

the California Building Code and the California Fire Code. 

 

  5.5  All residential chimneys shall be equipped with an approved spark arrester meeting the 

requirements of the California Building Code. 

 

  5.6 Knox ® brand key-box(es) shall be installed in location(s) acceptable to the Fire 

Department. All Knox boxes shall be monitored for tamper by the building fire alarm 

system. See Standard #H-001 for specific requirements. 

 

  5.8 The building shall be provided with a Public Safety 800 MHZ radio amplification system 

per the Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.09 (n) and the CFC. The design and 

installation shall be approved by the Fire Department.  

 

 

7.0 PROJECT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS 

 

  7.1 Due to the limited access, provide a standpipe system in the building. 

Item D - 42 of 44



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  Chuck Mercier, Planning Department 

 

FROM:  Douglas Sorel, Police Department 

 

DATE:  August 2, 2017 

 

SUBJECT: PDEV17-028 – A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT A 37 UNIT 

APARTMENT COMPLEX AT 931 EAST SIXTH STREET  

 

 

The “Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Resolution No. 2010-021 apply. The 

applicant shall read and be thoroughly familiar with these conditions, including, but not limited 

to, the requirements below. 

 

 Required lighting for walkways, driveways, doorways, parking lots, hallways, stairwells, 

and other areas used by the public shall be provided. A minimum 1.0 foot-candle of light 

is required for planned parking areas. Lights shall operate via photosensor. Photometrics 

shall be provided to the Police Department and include the types of fixtures proposed and 

demonstrate that such fixtures meet the vandal-resistant requirement. Planned 

landscaping shall not obstruct lighting. 

 The Applicant shall comply with construction site security requirements as stated in the 

Standard Conditions. 

 First floor stairwells shall be constructed so as to either allow for visibility through the 

stairwell risers or to prohibit public access to the areas behind stairwells. 

 The development shall participate in the Crime-Free Multi Housing program offered by 

the Ontario Police Department COPS Division.  

 

The Applicant is invited to contact Douglas Sorel at (909) 395-2873 with any questions or 

concerns regarding these conditions.    

 

Item D - 43 of 44



Item D - 44 of 44



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
January 17, 2018 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

FILE NO.: PDEV17-045 

DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-045) to construct 190 conventional single-
family homes on 40.20 acres of land located within the Conventional Medium Lot Residential district of 
Planning Area 3 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, located at the southeast corner of Archibald Avenue and 
Eucalyptus Avenue; (APNs: 0218-281-15 and 0218-281-16); submitted by KB Home. Planning 
Commission action is required. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

KB HOME, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application requesting Development 
Plan approval, File No. PDEV17-045, as described in the subject of this Decision (herein after referred to 
as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 40.20 acres of land located at the
southeast corner of Archibald Avenue and Eucalyptus Avenue, and is depicted in Exhibit A: Aerial 
Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan land 
uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site Vacant Rough Graded Low Density 
Residential 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 3 
(Conventional Medium 

Lot) 

North Agricultural/Dairy Uses Open Space – 
Parkland 

Grand Park Specific 
Plan Great Park 

South Single-Family 
Residential 

Low Density 
Residential 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 4 
(Conventional Medium 

Lot) 

East Vacant Previous 
Agricultural/Dairy Uses 

Low Density 
Residential 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 19 
(Lane Loaded) and 
Planning Area 20 

(Conventional Medium 
Lot) 

West Vacant Previous 
Agricultural/Dairy Uses 

Low Density 
Residential and 
Neighborhood 
Commercial 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 1 
(Conventional Small 

Lot) and Planning Area 
2 (Commercial) 

(2) Project Description: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-045) to construct 190
conventional single-family homes on 40.20 acres of land located within the Conventional Medium Lot 

Item E - 1 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-045 
January 17, 2018 
 

Page 2 

Residential district of Planning Area 3 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, located at the southeast corner of 
Archibald Avenue and Eucalyptus Avenue (See Exhibit B – Site Plan).   
 
The project proposes the development of 190 single-family conventional homes within Planning Area 3 of 
the Subarea 29 Specific Plan.  The project includes four floor plans and four architectural styles per plan.  
The four floor plans include the following: 

 
• Plan 1:  1,771 square feet, 3 bedrooms (option for 4th bedroom), den and 2 baths. 
• Plan 2:  2,385 square feet, 3 bedrooms, loft, den and 2.5 baths. 
• Plan 3:  2,742 square feet, 4 bedrooms (option for 5th & 6th bedrooms), loft, den and 2.5 baths. 
• Plan 4:  2,886 square feet, 4 bedrooms (option for 5th & 6th bedrooms), loft, den and 2.5 baths. 

 
All plans incorporate various design features, such as single and two-story massing, varied entries, front 
porches, 2nd floor laundry facilities, and a great room. In addition, each home will have a two-car garage 
and two-car driveway. The homes feature shallow and/or mid recessed garages, which locates the garage 
a minimum of 5 to 11 feet behind the front elevation/living space. To minimize visual impacts of garages, 
techniques such as the use of single-story massing on the front entries, second-story cantilever elements 
above garages, varied first and second-story roof massing, and door header trim and details above garages 
will be incorporated on the various elevations (Figure 2: Typical Plotting). 
 

 
Site Access/Circulation — The project street frontage improvements along Archibald Avenue and Parkview 
Street were constructed as part of the adjacent Park Place Community (Tract Map 18913 (“A” Map) and 
various “B” Maps).  The proposed development is required to construct Parkplace Avenue along the eastern 
frontage of the project site and Eucalyptus Avenue along the northern project frontage. Primary vehicular 
access into the development will be provided from Parkplace Avenue and Parkview Street. No direct 
vehicular access into the development will be allowed from Archibald Avenue and Eucalyptus Avenue. 
 
Parking – The proposed conventional single-family homes will provide a two-car garage and a standard 
two-car driveway, which meets the Subarea 29 Specific Plan and Development Code requirements. 
 
Open Space — The related Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT12-013/TT18400) will facilitate the 
construction of sidewalks, parkways, and open space areas within the project site. TOP Policy PR1-1 
requires new developments to provide a minimum of 2 acres of private park per 1,000 residents. The 

 
Figure 2: Typical Plotting 

Item E - 2 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-045 
January 17, 2018 
 

Page 3 

proposed project is required to provide a 1.45 acre park to meet the minimum TOP private park requirement. 
To satisfy the park requirement, the applicant is proposing a 1.50-acre neighborhood park that is centrally 
located within the project site. The residents of the subdivision will also have access to Celebration Park.  

 
Architecture — The architectural styles proposed include Spanish, Cottage and Andalusian. The styles 
complement one another through the overall scale, massing, proportions and details. The proposed home 
designs are consistent with the design guidelines of the Specific Plan. Each architectural style will include 
the following details (See Exhibit C – Floor Plans and Elevations): 
 

Spanish Colonial: Varying gable and hipped roofs with “S” concrete roof tiles; stucco finish; 
decorative tile arched entries and covered porches; cantilevered elements with corbels; decorative 
foam eaves; decorative tile below gable ends; arched headers above garage doors; decorative 
shutters and window framing.    

 
Craftsman: Varying gable and hipped roofs with flat concrete roof tiles, wooden outlookers below 
gable ends, knee braces, vertical siding below gable ends, stucco finish, shingle siding, 
cantilevered elements with corbels; covered porches with either a simple tapered or dual post 
columns with stone veneer bases, decorative shutters and window framing.  
 
American Traditional: Varying gable and hipped roofs with flat concrete roof tiles, decorative vents 
below gable ends, stucco finish, horizontal siding, cantilevered elements with corbels; covered 
porches with a simple wood post columns, decorative shutters and window framing.  
 
Cottage: Varying gable and hipped roofs with flat concrete roof tiles, stucco finish; decorative vents 
and corbels below gable ends; covered porch entries with stone veneer; cantilever elements with 
corbels; decorative shutters and window framing.  
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with 
File No. PSPA14-002, a(n) Amendment to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan for which a(n) addendum to the 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) was adopted by the City council on April 21, 2015, and 
this Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development Advisory 
Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the Planning 
Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 

Item E - 3 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-045 
January 17, 2018 
 

Page 4 

Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; 
 

WHEREAS, on January 17, 2018, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous addendum to the 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) and supporting documentation. Based upon the facts 
and information contained in the previous addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 
2004011009) and supporting documentation, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with File 
No. PSPA14-002, a(n) Amendment to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan for which a(n) addendum to the 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) was adopted by the City Council on April 21, 2015. 
 

(2) The previous addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) 
contains a complete and accurate reporting of the environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) was 
completed in compliance with CEQA and the Guidelines promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario 
Local CEQA Guidelines; and 
 

(4) The previous addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) reflects 
the independent judgment of the Planning Commission; and 
 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those 
previously analyzed in the previous addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009), 
and all mitigation measures previously adopted with the addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR 
(SCH# 2004011009), are incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 

the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds 
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) 
is not required for the Project, as the Project: 
 

Item E - 4 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-045 
January 17, 2018 
 

Page 5 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 
2004011009) that will require major revisions to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) 
due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of 
previously identified significant effects; and 

 
(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 

Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) was prepared, that will require major revisions to the 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) due to the involvement of new significant environmental 
effects or a substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified significant effects; and. 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 

not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the Subarea 29 Specific Plan 
EIR (SCH# 2004011009) was certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 
 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the Subarea 
29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009); or 

 
(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 

shown in the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009); or 
 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City 
declined to adopt such measures; or  

 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 

the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) would substantially reduce one or more significant 
effects on the environment, but which the City declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project site is one of the 
properties listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) 
of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, and the proposed project is consistent with the 
maximum number of dwelling units (190) and density (4.72 DU/AC) specified within the Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan.  Per the Available Land Inventory, the Subarea 29 Specific Plan is required to provide 2,291 dwelling 
units with an overall density of 5 DU/AC. 

 
SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 

Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 

Item E - 5 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-045 
January 17, 2018 
 

Page 6 

conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the Low Density Residential 
land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the Conventional Medium Lot Residential (Planning 
Area 3) land use district of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The development standards and conditions under 
which the proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, 
and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario 
Plan.  The Development Plan has been required to comply with all provisions of Conventional Medium Lot 
Residential Product: Village Homes Residential Development Standards of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. 
Future neighborhoods within the Subarea 29 Specific Plan and surrounding area will provide for diverse 
housing and highly amenitized neighborhoods that will be compatible in design, scale and massing to the 
proposed development; and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and Conventional 
Medium Lot Residential (Planning Area 3); (Conventional Medium Lot Residential Product: Village Homes) 
land use district of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, as-well-as building intensity, building and parking 
setbacks, building height, number of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, 
and fences, walls and obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan are 
maintained; [ii] the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will 
not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in which 
it is located; and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy 
Plan components of The Ontario Plan, and the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. Additionally, the environmental 
impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the Subarea 29 Specific Plan 
Environmental Impact Report (SCH#2004011009). This application is consistent with the previously 
adopted EIR and introduces no new significant environmental impacts; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan that are applicable to the proposed Project, 
including building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and 
loading spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and 
fences and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to the 
particular land use being proposed (conventional single-family residential). As a result of this review, the 
Development Advisory Board has determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the 
conditions of approval, will be consistent with the development standards and guidelines described in the 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan. Additionally, the Development Plan complies with all provisions of Conventional 
Medium Lot Residential Product: Village Homes Residential Development Standards of the Subarea 29 
Specific Plan. 

Item E - 6 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-045 
January 17, 2018 
 

Page 7 

 
SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 

set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends that the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of January 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item E - 7 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-045 
January 17, 2018 
 

Page 8 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 

  

Item E - 8 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-045 
January 17, 2018 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Item E - 9 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-045 
January 17, 2018 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit C— FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS: PLAN 1 
 

 
 
 

Item E - 10 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-045 
January 17, 2018 
 

Page 11 

Exhibit C— FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS: PLAN 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Item E - 11 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-045 
January 17, 2018 
 

Page 12 

Exhibit C— FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS: PLAN 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

Item E - 12 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-045 
January 17, 2018 
 

Page 13 

Exhibit C— FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS: PLAN 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

Item E - 13 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-045 
January 17, 2018 
 

Page 14 

Exhibit C— FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS: PLAN 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Item E - 14 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-045 
January 17, 2018 
 

Page 15 

Exhibit C— FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS: PLAN 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Item E - 15 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-045 
January 17, 2018 
 

Page 16 

Exhibit C— FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS: PLAN 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Item E - 16 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-045 
January 17, 2018 
 

Page 17 

Exhibit C— FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS: PLAN 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Item E - 17 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-045 
January 17, 2018 
 

Page 18 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 
 

Item E - 18 of 38



Item E - 19 of 38



Item E - 20 of 38



Item E - 21 of 38



Item E - 22 of 38



Item E - 23 of 38



Item E - 24 of 38



Item E - 25 of 38



Item E - 26 of 38



Item E - 27 of 38



Item E - 28 of 38



Item E - 29 of 38



Item E - 30 of 38



Item E - 31 of 38



Item E - 32 of 38



Item E - 33 of 38



Item E - 34 of 38



Item E - 35 of 38



Item E - 36 of 38



Item E - 37 of 38



Item E - 38 of 38


	20180117_DAB Agenda
	AGENDA
	January 17, 2018
	Hassan Haghani, Development Director
	John P. Andrews, Economic Development Director
	Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department


	20180117_Item A_Minutes
	BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
	BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT
	STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

	20180117_Item B_PDEV17-036
	20180117 PDEV17-036 - Infiniti of Ontario^01_AR
	20180117 PDEV17-036 - Infiniti of Ontario^02_COA

	20180117_Item C_PMTT14-020
	20180117 PMTT14-020 (PM 19552) Time Extension #2^01_AR
	20180117 PMTT14-020 (PM 19552) Time Extension #2^02_COA

	20180117_Item D_PDEV17-028
	20180117 PDEV17-028 - 37 MFR Dwellings^01_AR
	20180117 PDEV17-028 - 37 MFR Dwellings^02_COA

	20180117_Item E_PDEV17-045
	20180117 File No PDEV17-045 KB Home ^01_AR
	20180117 File No PDEV17-045 KB Home ^02_COA




